Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@

CouncilZ
Standards Committee
Agenda
Date: Monday, 27th September, 2010
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road,

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and
press. Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the
reasons indicated on the agenda and at the top of each report.

PART 1 — MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal
and/or prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos. 11 and 35 a total period of 10
minutes is allocated for members of the public to address the Committee on
any matter relevant to the work of the Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the
Chairman will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking will
be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. It is not required to give
notice of the intention to make use of public speaking provision; however, as a
matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours notice is encouraged.

Members of the public should provide 3 clear working days notice, in writing, if
they wish to ask a question at the meeting, in order for an informed answer to
be given.

Please contact Carol Jones on 01270 686471

E-Mail: carol.jones@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies or requests for
further information or to give notice of a question to be asked by a
member of the public




Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 1-4)

To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2010.
MATTERS REQUIRING A DECISION BY THE COMMITTEE

Sub-Committee Terms of Reference (Pages 5 - 10)

At the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 26 July 2010, the role of
each of the Sub-Committees was discussed and clarification sought. The
attached report details the Terms of Reference for each of the Sub-
Committees of the Standards Committee, namely [(1) Assessment Sub-
Committee; (2) Review Sub-Committee; (3) Hearings Sub-Committee, which is
divided into the two roles of (i) consideration; and (ii) hearings.

Planning Protocol (Pages 11 - 32)

To consider the joint report of the Monitoring Officer and the Head of Planning
and Policy which proposes amendments to the Planning Protocol adopted by
Council on 24™ February 2009.

The Committee is invited to commend the revised Planning Protocol to the
Constitution Committee for inclusion in the Constitution.

Partnership Protocol (Pages 33 - 52)

The attached report provides an update on the work undertaken to develop a
protocol for values and behaviours for use within partnerships.

The Committee is invited to -

i) endorse the action taken by the Local Strategic Partnership to integrate
the Standards in Partnerships Protocol into the LSP Partnership
Agreement;

ii) request the Head of the Partnership Team to produce an Annual Report
for this Committee on the effectiveness of the Partnership Agreement;

iii) request the Monitoring Officer to promote the agreement across
Cheshire East for those Partnerships outside the Local Strategic
Partnership Framework; and

iv) request the Constitution Committee to consider incorporating the
agreed Protocol into the Constitution as part of its ongoing review.

ICT Code of Practice for Cheshire East Members (Pages 53 - 58)

ICT Security Policies have been developed and agreed and a Code of
Practice for Staff has been developed to give specific examples and guidance
to aid the interpretation of the detailed policies.

A Code of Practice for Members has also been produced to give specific
examples. The Committee is asked to adopt the ICT Code of Practice for
Members.



10.

11.

Customer Complaints and Local Government Ombudsman Complaints
(Pages 59 - 64)

At its meeting held on 26 July 2010, the Committee considered a report which
provided a summary of complaints dealt with by the Local Government
Ombudsman in respect of Cheshire East Council for the period 1 April 2009 to
31 March 2010.

The Committee requested a summary report on both Local Government
Ombudsman complaints and customer complaints to be submitted to each
meeting of the Committee.

The attached combined report provides a summary of the corporate complaints
and Local Government Ombudsman complaints for the period 1 April 2010 to
30 June 2010.

The Committee is asked to note the report and make any comments it
considers appropriate.

INFORMATION ITEM
Standards for England - Bulletin 48 (Pages 65 - 68)
To receive the Standards for England Bulletin No. 48.

+++++

Exclusion of Press and Public

The report relating to the remaining item on the agenda has been withheld
from public circulation and deposit pursuant to Section 100(B)(2) of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that the matter may be determined with
the press an public excluded.

The Committee may decide that the press and public be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the following items pursuant to Section
100(A)4 of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that they involve
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 and
7c of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 1972
and the public interest would not be served in publishing the information.

PART 2 - MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC

12.

AND PRESS
Complaints Received Under the Code of Conduct (Pages 69 - 72)

To consider a report on complaints received under the Code of Conduct.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Standards Committee
held on Monday, 26th July, 2010 in Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields,
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Mr N Briers (Chairman)
Mr D Sayer (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Rhoda Bailey, B Dykes, J Hammond, M Parsons, L Smetham,
Barnett and Eatough

Independent Members:
Mr | Clark and Mr M Garratt

Parish Representatives:
Mrs P Barnett and Mrs T Eatough

APOLOGIES:
Councillor M A Martin, Mr K Edwards and Mr R Pomlett

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Mr C Chapman Monitoring Officer

Mrs H Gough Customer Services Manager

Mr P Jones Democratic Services Team Leader
Mrs C M Jones Democratic Services Officer

10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were made.

11 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION
In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos. 11 and 35, a total period of 10
minutes was allocated for members of the public to address the

Committee on any matter relevant to its work.

There were no members of the public in attendance and the Committee,
therefore, proceeded to its next business.

12 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2010 be approved as a
correct record.



13

14

15

Page 2

PARTNERSHIPS PROTOCOL

Arising out of discussion of the minutes of the previous meeting, Members
requested an update on the development of the Partnerships Protocol.

RESOLVED

That an update on development of the Partnerships Protocol be submitted
to the next meeting.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN COMPLAINTS

The Committee considered a report which provided a summary of
complaints dealt with by the Local Government Ombudsman in respect of
Cheshire East Council for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010.

During discussion of the report, the issue of customer complaints in
general was raised. An outline of the process was provided for Members,
together with an indication of current performance compared with the
previous period. Complaints, suggestions and compliments management
information was collated on a monthly basis. A new Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) System was to be introduced in September 2010 and
this would improve the capture of the monthly management information.

Members considered that it would be helpful to receive a report at each
meeting on complaints/compliments generally, divided into the type of
complaint, response rates for responding to complaints and whether or not
they were satisfactorily resolved from the perspective of the complainant.
The information would enable the Committee to detect emerging trends
and highlight areas of concern.

RESOLVED

That a summary report on both Local Government Ombudsman
complaints and customer complaints be submitted to each meeting of the
Committee.

TRAINING REQUIREMENTS

The Committee was invited to identify any training needs. At the previous
meeting, it had been suggested that Chairmen’s training in respect of the
process/procedures for the three Sub-Committees be undertaken. The
possibility of joint training was being explored.

Basic planning training for Members of the Committee had also been
suggested. The Planning Protocol was currently being reviewed and
updated and in view of this, it may be appropriate for probity training to be
arranged in November 2010.



Page 3

RESOLVED:
That training events be arranged as appropriate.

16 THE FUTURE OF STANDARDS FOR ENGLAND AND IMPACT UPON
THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

The Committee considered a report on the current position regarding
Standards for England and the implications for the Standards Committee.

Following the Parliamentary Election and the formation of the Coalition

Government, it had been announced that the standards board regime, and

as part of this, Standards for England, was to be abolished. The draft Bill
“‘Decentralisation and Localism”, which was expected to enact the
abolition, had not yet been published. The date for abolition was unknown,

but was expected to be later in the year or early in 2011.

During discussion of the implications for the Standards Committee, the

Chairman suggested that the “Issues and Improvements Working Group”

meet on Tuesday, 2 November at 2 pm to prepare a discussion paper for

consideration at the November meeting of the Committee.
RESOLVED:
That

1. the report be noted; and

2. arrangements be made for a meeting of the “Issues and
Improvements Working Group” on Tuesday, 2 November 2010.

17 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following item, pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the
Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it involved the likely

disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 2 and 7c of

Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local Government Act 1972
and the public interest would not be served in publishing this information.

18 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT

The Committee received a report about serving Cheshire East Councillors

(Complaint Nos. CEC/10/02 and CEC10/03); a Town Councillor

(Complaint No. CEC/10/04); and a report back in respect of Complaint No.
CEC/10/01.

The complaints had been considered by an Assessment Sub-Committee

on 13 July 2010 when the following action had been agreed —
CEC/10/01 Noted



Page 4

CEC/10/02 Referred to the Monitoring Officer for investigation
CEC/10/03 No action.
CEC/10/04 Referred to the Monitoring Officer for investigation

During discussion of the terms of reference for the three Sub-Committees
(1 — Assessment; 2 — Review; and 3 — Hearing) it was agreed that a report
clarifying the respective roles and responsibilities be submitted to the next
meeting.

RESOLVED:
That
1. the report be received and noted; and
2. a report clarifying the role and responsibilities of the Standards
Committee’s three Sub-Committees be submitted to the next
meeting.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.00 pm

Nigel Briers (Chairman)



Page 5 Agenda Item 5

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 27 September 2010
Report of: Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
Subject/Title: Terms of Reference — Standards Sub-Committees

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 Atthe meeting of the Standards Committee held on 26 July 2010, the role of
each of the Sub-Committees was discussed and clarification sought. This
report details the Terms of Reference for each of the Sub-Committees of the
Standards Committee, namely (1) Assessment Sub-Committee; (2) Review
Sub-Committee; (3) Hearings Sub-Committee, and provides a brief
explanation on the role of each.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 The Committee is asked to RESOLVE —

That the Terms of Reference for the Sub-Committees of the Standards
Committee be noted.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 The Terms of Reference for the Standards Committee Sub-Committees
comply with relevant legislation and Guidance issued by Standards for
England.

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1  Not applicable

5.0 Local Ward Members

51 All Councillors

6.0 Policy Implications

6.1 None identified



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.4

Page 6

Legal Implications
None identified other than as outlined in the report.
Risk Management

The creation of separate Sub-Committees to deal with various aspects of
complaints has ensured that the separate functions involved in the handling
of complaints can be carried out without conflicts of interest as required by
legislation and guidance.

Background and Options

At its meeting held on 13 January 2009, the Committee agreed to the
establishment of two Sub-Committees to fulfil its assessment and review
roles, namely the Assessment Sub-Committee and the Review Sub-
Committee.

On 10 March 2009, the Committee agreed to establish a separate Hearing
Sub-Committee and approved its Terms of Reference. The Terms of
Reference were revised to accord with the Guidance issued by Standards
for England on 18 May 2009 and the Monitoring Officer reported . At the
meeting, the Monitoring Officer outlined proposed amendments and these
were accepted by the Committee which authorised the Monitoring Officer to
make any consequential amendments.

Revised Terms of Reference were reported to the meeting held on 13 July
20009.

The Terms of Reference for each are attached as an Appendix. In
summary, the role of each Sub-Committee is as follows:

(A) Assessment Sub-Committee

The role of this Sub-Committee is to receive complaints and make an initial
assessment as to whether or not there is a prima facie case which warrants
further action or investigation.

(B) Review Sub-Committee

If the Assessment Sub-Committee has concluded that there is no case to
answer, and the complainant is dissatisfied with this outcome, they can
request the Review Sub-Committee to review that decision.

This Sub-Committee will assess the complaint afresh and it has the same
decision-making powers as the Assessment Sub-Committee, ie (i) refer the
complaint for investigation, (ii) refer for other action, (iii) refer to Standards
for England, or (iv) decide that no action should be taken.



11.0

Page 7

The Review Sub-Committee cannot comprise the same membership as that
of the Assessment Sub-Committee which initially assessed the complaint.

(C) Hearings Sub-Committee

Although this Sub-Committee is called the “Hearings” Sub-Committee for
ease of reference, it has two distinct roles. It has a “consideration” role and
a “determining” role. The “consideration” meeting is separate to the meeting
at which a hearing may subsequently need to be conducted to “determine”
the complaint.

“Consideration” role

Where a complaint has been referred for investigation, the Monitoring
Officer will appoint an Investigating Officer to investigate the complaint. The
Sub-Committee, acting in a “consideration” capacity then receives the
Investigator’s Report, for the purpose of deciding, based on the facts as set
out in the report, whether or not to accept the findings of the Investigator.

If the Investigator’s report concludes that there has been no breach and the
Sub-Committee agrees, there is no further action.

However, if a breach has been identified by the Investigator, or the Sub-
Committee disagrees with an Investigator's finding of “no breach”, then it
must hold a hearing to consider the matter in full. Not only is this in
accordance with the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008, but
it also ensures that the Rules of Natural Justice are not breached; these are
the minimum standards of fair decision-making imposed on persons or
bodies acting in a judicial capacity and includes (a) the right to know the
case against them; (b) the right to a fair hearing; and (c) the rule against
bias, including a perception of bias.

“Determination” role

This will be a separately convened Sub-Committee but it can include the
same Members who considered the complaint at “consideration” stage.

At the Hearing, the subject Member and/or their representative, together
with the complainant and any witnesses, will have the opportunity to present
their case to Members (both orally and in writing).

The Sub-Committee will determine whether or not there has been a breach
of the Code of Conduct and if it concludes that there has been a breach, will
be able to impose appropriate sanctions.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting the report writer:



Page 8

Name: Chris Chapman
Designation: Monitoring Officer
Tel No: 01270 686637

Email: chris.chapman@cheshireeast.gov.uk



Page 9

APPENDIX
TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR SUB-COMMITTEES

(A) Assessment Sub-Committee

(3 Members — any 3 drawn from full Committee)
(Regulation 6 stipulates that an Independent Member must chair a Sub-
Committee and Regulation 7 stipulates that at least one Member of the
Authority must be present at the meeting)

Terms of Reference

(@)  To receive complaints that a Member of Cheshire East Council or a
Town/Parish Council within Cheshire East has failed, or may have
failed, to comply with the Authority’s Code of Conduct;

(b)  To make an initial assessment of any complaint using the
Assessment Criteria and decide one of the following courses of
action:

(i) refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer for investigation;
(i) refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer for other action;

(iii) refer the complaint to the Standards Board for investigation;

(iv) decide that no action should be taken.

(B) Review Sub-Committee

(3 Members — any 3 drawn from full Committee)
( Regulation 6 stipulates that an Independent Member must chair a Sub-
Committee; and Regulation 7 stipulates that at least one Member of the
Authority must be present at the meeting)

Terms of Reference

(@)  Toreview, upon receipt of a request from a complainant, a decision
of the Assessment Sub-Committee to take no action in respect of a
complaint that a Member of Cheshire East Council or a Town/Parish
Council within Cheshire East has failed to comply with the Authority’s
Code of Conduct and determine one of the following courses of
action:

(i) Refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer for formal
investigation;

(i) Refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer for other action;

(iii) Refer the complaint to the Standards Board for England;

(iv) Decide that no action should be taken.



(C)

Page 10

To publish a written summary giving the main points considered,
conclusions reached and the reasons for the conclusions in relation
to any actions set out in paragraph (a).

Hearings Sub-Committee

(5 Members — any 5 drawn from full Committee - Quorum - 3)

(Regulation 6 stipulates that an Independent Member must chair a Sub-
Committee and Regulation 7 stipulates that at least one Member of the
Authority must be present at the meeting)

(@)

(c)

(d)

Terms of Reference

To consider a report of the Monitoring Officer following his
investigation of the complaint and decide one of the following courses
of action:

(i) to accept the Monitoring Officer’s finding that there has been
no failure to observe the Code of Conduct;

(i) to refer the matter for consideration at a hearing before this
Sub-Committee;

(i)  to refer the matter to the Adjudication Panel for determination.

To hold hearings into complaints that a Member of Cheshire East
Council or a Town/Parish Council within Cheshire East has failed, or
may have failed, to comply with the Authority’s Code of Conduct;

To decide that:

(i) the Member who was the subject of the hearing has not failed
to comply with the Code of Conduct; or

(i) the Member who was the subject of the hearing has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct but no action needs to be
taken; or

(i)  the Member who was the subject of the hearing has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct and that a sanction should
be imposed.

To impose any appropriate sanctions when a finding under paragraph
(b) (iii) above occurs in accordance with Regulation 19 of The
Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008.

To publish a written summary giving the main points considered,
conclusions reached and the reasons for the conclusions in relation
to any actions set out in paragraphs (a) and (c) above.



Page 11 Agenda ltem 6

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: Standards Committee

Date of Meeting: 27" September 2010
Joint Report of: Monitoring Officer and Head of Planning and Policy
Subject/Title: The Planning Protocol

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 This report attaches as Appendix 1 proposed amendments to the
Planning Protocol adopted by Council on 24" February 2009. The
Standards Committee is asked to review and comment on the
proposed amendments.

2.0 Recommendations

21 To commend the amended Planning Protocol contained in the joint
report of the Monitoring Officer and Head of Planning and Policy to the
Constitution Committee for inclusion in the Constitution.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1  Since the adoption of the original version of the Planning Protocol by
the Council, updated versions of guidance for Planning Councillors
have been published, and additionally the Planning Protocol has been
reviewed by the Chairmen and Vice Chairmen of the Strategic
Planning Board and Planning Committees, in conjunction with Officers.

4.0 Wards Affected

41 Al

5.0 Local Ward Members

5.1  All Strategic Planning Board and Planning Committee Members

6.0 Policy Implications

6.1  None

7.0 Financial Implications for Transition Costs

7.1 None



8.0

8.1

8.2

9.0

9.1

9.2

Page 12

Legal Implications

There is a risk of legal challenge to the decisions made by the
Strategic Planning Board and Planning Committee’s if robust and
consistent procedures are not in place in line with current national
guidance.

There is also a greater risk of a Local Government Ombudsman
complaint being upheld if the Authority does not provide clear,
consistent and up-to-date advice to Councillors in carrying out their
duties and responsibilities when determining Planning Applications and
considering planning matters.

Risk Management

The Planning Protocol, in order to operate effectively, needs to be a
document that is reviewed and updated regularly, and those
amendments reported to the members of the relevant Committees so
that members involved in the planning process are fully aware of the
contents and their responsibilities.

If the reviews and updates do not take place, and members are not
made aware of them, a number of risks can be identified:

e Generally, a lack of up-to-date advice aimed at ensuring the
integrity of the planning system for those Councillors involved as
Members of the Board or Committees and for those involved as
Local Ward Members

e Personal and prejudicial interests and fettering of discretion not
being identified and declared at the required times and the
appropriate actions carried out as a result

e lack of, or inconsistent, up-to-date advice concerning how
Councillors respond to requests for any meetings with developers,
applicants, neighbours, Parish/Town Councils

e lack of, or inconsistent, advice regarding lobbying of and by
Councillors and how to react to this

e lack of clarity and inconsistent procedures applied throughout
Cheshire East with regard to decision making at Board/Committee
meetings

e Complaints to the Local Government Ombudsman being upheld
over conduct and matters that occur at Board/Committee meetings
and during the conduct of planning applications.



9.3

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Page 13

The updated protocol provides updated guidance and requirements on
these points.

Background and Options

A Planning Protocol was adopted as part of the Constitution by the
Council in February 2009, and was expected to be reviewed by both
Officers and Members in light of any new Guidance that had been
published and the operation of the Planning Protocol following the first
few months of the Strategic Planning Board and Planning Committees
taking decisions as the Local Planning Authority for Cheshire East.

In August 2009 a meeting between the Chairmen and Vice Chairmen
of the Strategic Planning Board and Planning Committees and relevant
Planning Officers took place, to review a number of issues arising out
of the first three months of the operation of the Development
Management Service for Cheshire East. This included the operation of
the Planning Protocol and any queries or issues that arose that needed
amendments or clarification within the protocol.

At this meeting it was acknowledged that an updated version of the
Local Government Association guidance document, “Probity in
Planning”, had been published, and while not necessitating whole
scale changes to the Planning Protocol, there was some further
clarification that could be incorporated within the Planning Protocol for
Cheshire  East. Additionally, there were a number of
amendments/clarifications that Officers had identified for the Planning
Protocol through the operation of such for the initial months of
Cheshire East.

An amended Planning Protocol has now been produced and is
attached as Appendix 1 to this report. The changes made have been
tracked through the document to make them easy to locate and identify
what the changes are.

The amended Planning Protocol was considered by the Strategic
Planning Board at their meeting on the 25" September 2010, and they
resolved that the amended Planning Protocol be commended to the
Constitution Committee for inclusion in the Constitution subject to
minor amendments to paragraph 8.4 and 4.5, and any views that are
expressed by the Standards Committee. The amendments required
have been incorporated into the document at Appendix 1 of this report
and are identified in blue typeface.

Aside from the Strategic Planning Board amendments, the main
changes are to sections 4, Fettering Discretion in the Planning Process
and 7, Contact with Applicants, Developers and Objectors, with other
changes picking up basic typographical errors or making minor
amendments and clarifications to existing wording.



10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

Page 14

The changes to section 4 are an attempt to clarify the position of
Members in avoiding fettering of discretion and when a Member has
fettered their discretion. This is a result of updated guidance in the
Probity in Planning document and as a result of specific issues that
have arisen for Cheshire East. Members may be aware that the
Coalition Government have indicated that they may look at the issue of
pre-determination/fettering of discretion, and guidance may therefore
change again in the future.

The newly added section 4.5 reminds Members that they can refer
members of the public to other Councillors within the same Ward,
particularly if they are not on the Strategic Planning Board or the same
Committee. Even if they are, it may be that Members determine that
one of the ward members should be the voice of the Local Community
and effectively fetter their discretion, but that this would leave the other
Member/s free to take part in the decision making process at the
relevant Committee.

Section 4.7 is additional guidance as to what a member who has
fettered their discretion (pre-determined the item) should then do at the
meeting, again following the updated Probity in Planning document
and experiences of the three Committees. Clarification is provided that
a pre-determining Member should not simply push their chair back
from the Committee table, they should as a minimum move to the
public gallery to be clear that they are no longer part of the decision
making body. Should the Member wish to speak under the Public
Speaking Protocol, they should do so from the public gallery, and
return there after speaking until the item has been concluded when
they can rejoin the Committee. However, Members should be alive to
circumstances where they should do more to distance themselves from
the decision making (eg by leaving the room at an appropriate point).

The addition to Section 7 regarding Pre Application Discussions is
provided as high level general advice as it is understood that the
Development Management Officers are to provide a further, more
detailed, guidance document, akin to that already produced on Site
Visits and Call in of applications. Again this follows additional guidance
produced in the Probity in planning Document and the up dated
Positive Engagement — a Guide for Planning Councillors (updated
version) which is produced by a number of bodies including the
Planning Advisory Service. Local Government Association, Planning
Officers Society, Association of Council Solicitors and Secretaries and
the Standards Board for England. The Government is committed to
more pre-application discussion with developers as part of the
Development Management process and as a result there is a need to
provide advice to Members on their role in the process.



Page 15

11.0 Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting the report writer:

Name: Nicky Folan

Designation: Solicitor

Tel No: 01270 685851

Email: nicky.folan@cheshireeast.gv.uk



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



|

Page 17

PLANNING PROTOCOL OF CONDUCT IN RELATION TO THE DETERMINATION OF
PLANNING MATTERS

This Planning Protocol of Conduct for the determination of planning matters ('the Planning

Protocol') substantially follows the Model_members Planning Code of Good Practice, _

produced by the Association of Council Solicitors and Secretaries following consultation
with the Audit Commission, the Local Government Ombudsman and the Standards Board
for England.

A number of other national guidance documents have also provided a reference for the
content of this Planning Protocol, including, but not exclusively,

- - { Deleted: Code

o the Local Government Association Probity in Planning guidance note, ‘Formatted: Bullets and

e the Standards Board For Enaland Model Code of Conduct guidance for members,
e the Planning Advisory Service and Improvement and Development Agency Area
Based Decision Making for Development Control — a review,

is a jointly produced document from Communities and Local Government, Planning

Numbering

1 + Aligned at: 0.63 cm + Tab
after: 1.27 cm + Indent at:

e the updated version of Positive Engagement, a quide for Planning Councillors which+ - - [Formatted: Bulleted + Level:

Advisory Service, Local Government Association, the Planning Officers Society, the
Association of Council Secretaries and Solicitors and the Standards Board for

England.

The aim of the Planning Protocol is to give advice aimed at ensuring the preservation of
the integrity of the planning system as open and fair to all parties. It is intended that the
Planning Protocol will continue to engender public confidence in the planning system
within Cheshire East, whilst avoiding procedural rules which are so rigid and overbearing
that observance of them would become an end in itself at the expense of the consideration
of the merits of an application.

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The aim of this Planning Protocol is to ensure that in the planning process
there are no grounds for suggesting that a decision has been biased, partial or
not well-founded in any way.

1.2 The key purpose of Planning is to manage development in the public interest.
1.3 Your role as a Member of the Planning Authority is to make planning

decisions openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons.

14 When the Planning Protocol applies: this Planning Protocol applies at all
times when Councillors are involved in the planning process. (This includes,
where applicable, when part of decision-making meetings of the Council in
exercising the functions of the Planning Authority or when involved on less
formal occasions, such as meetings with officers or the public and consultative
meetings.) It applies as equally to planning enforcement matters or site specific
policy issues as it does to planning applications.

1.5 If you have any doubts about the application of this Planning Protocol to
your own circumstances you should seek advice early, from the
Monitoring Officer, and preferably well before any meeting takes place.

Page 1 of 16
Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

1.27 em

.- ‘[Deleted: control

f{ Deleted: v2




Page 18

1.6 In this Planning Protocol “Planning Meeting” covers all meetings of the Strategic
Planning Board and the Planning Committees.

2 RELATIONSHIP TO THE MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

2.1 Do apply the rules in the Members’ Code of Conduct first, which must always
be complied with throughout the decision making process.

2.2 Do then apply the rules of this Planning Protocol, which seeks to explain and
supplement the Members' Code of Conduct for the purposes of planning
control. If you do not abide by this Planning Protocol you may put :-

- the Council at risk of proceedings on the legality or
maladministration of the related decision; and

- vyourself at risk of either being named in a report made to the
Standards Committee or Council or, if the failure is also likely
to be a breach of the Code of Conduct, a complaint being
made to the Standards Committee.

3 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS AND INTERESTS UNDER THE MEMBERS’

CODE
3.1 Do disclose the existence and nature of any interest, including any perceived
interest, at any relevant meeting, including informal meetings or discussions
with officers and other Councillors. This is your resgonsibilitv.__P_r_e[e__rgb[7,7,,~lFormqtted:Font: Bold,
disclose your interest at the beginning of the meeting and not just at the Hndering

commencement of discussion on that particular matter, The requirements for _. - { Deleted:.

vou to declare any interest apply whenever you are in attendance at a meeting,
reqgardless of whether you are a member of the Committee or not.

3.2 Do then act accordingly. Where your interest is personal and prejudicial:-

- Don’t participate, or give the appearance of trying to
participate, in the making of any decision on the matter by the
planning authority. You must withdraw from the meeting room

when the matter is announced unless you are exercising your _.- { Deleted: discussed

to attend and make representations_under the Public Speaking
Protocol.

- Don’t try to represent local, Ward or Area views, get another
Member to do so instead.

- Don’t get involved in the processing of the application.
- Don’t seek or accept any preferential treatment, or place

yourself in a position that could lead the public to think you are
receiving preferential treatment, because of your position as a

councillor. This would include, where you have a personal {Deteted: v2

Page 2 of 16 j
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4 g



3.3

| 4

Page 19

and prejudicial interest in a proposal, using your position to
discuss that proposal with Officers or Councillors when other
members of the public would not have the same opportunity to
do so.

Do be aware that, whilst you are not prevented from seeking
to explain and justify a proposal in which you have a personal
and prejudicial interest to an appropriate officer, in person or
in writing, the Code places greater limitations on you than
would apply to a normal member of the public.

Do notify the Monitoring Officer and Head of Planning and Policy in writing of
your own application, or if you are employed as an agent and note that:-

PROCESS

notification to the Monitoring Officer and the Head of Planning
and Policy should be made no later than submission of the
application;

the proposal will always be reported to the planning meeting
and not dealt with by Officers under the scheme of delegation;
and

it is advisable that you employ an agent to act on your behalf
on the proposal in dealing with officers and any public

public criticism
you do have a right to make written representations to officers

about the proposal and may address the planning meeting
pursuant to the Public Speaking Protocol subject to certain
additional restrictions (see paragraph 11 below for more
detailed advice on this point).

FETTERING DISCRETION_ (PREDETERMINATION) IN THE PLANNING

Given the requirement that Councillors of the planning meetings should exercise an
independent mind and decide proposals in accordance with the relevant planning
considerations, Councillors must not favour any person, company, group or locality or
commit themselves to a particular point of view on a planning application prior to its full
consideration at the Council’s planning meetings.

Don’t fetter your discretion and therefore your ability to participate in planning
decision-making at this Council by making up your mind, or clearly appearing to
have made up your mind (particularly in relation to an external interest or lobby
group), on how you will vote on any planning matter prior to formal
consideration of the matter at the meeting of the planning authority and of your
hearing the officer's presentation and evidence and arguments on both sides.

Fettering your discretion in this way and then taking part in the decision will
put the Council at risk of a finding of maladministration and of legal proceedings
on the grounds of there being a danger of bias or pre-determination or a failure
to take into account all of the factors enabling the proposal to be considered on

4.1
4.2

its merits.
Page 3 of 16

| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

g {Deleted: ;

,@eleted: v2
/’




43

4.4

4.5

4.6

Page 20

Do be aware that you are likely to have fettered your discretion where the
Council is the landowner, developer or applicant and you have acted as, or
could be perceived as heing, a chief advocate for the proposal. (This is more
than a matter of dual membership, but that through your significant personal
involvement in preparing or advocating the proposal you will be, or perceived by
the public as being, no longer able to act impartially or to determine the
proposal purely on its planning merits.)

Do remember that you are, of course, free to listen to a point of view about a
planning proposal, give procedural advice and agree to forward any comments,
but should then refer the person to the appropriate planning officer.

Do remember that where other ward Councillors are available and wherg, they _

_-{ peleted: , i )

do not sit as a member of the same planning meeting, they will not be subject to

the same restrictions regarding fettering of discretion and are therefore a valid
alternative contact for members of the public or lobby groups.

Do not use any political group meetings prior to the planning meeting to
determine how you or other Councillors should vote. There is no objection to a
political group having a predisposition, short of predetermination, for a particular
outcome or for you to begin to form a view as more information and opinions

become available but you should not make up your mind until you have read the _

planning officer’s report and update and heard any further representations and

the debate at the planning meeting.

You are not legally obliged to withdraw from the room but in most

circumstances doing so will counter any potential suggestion that you

influenced the remaining members by your continued presence. If in any doubt

you should seek advice from the Monitoring Officer. If you do not withdraw, as a
minimum you must withdraw to the public area of the meeting room for the
whole of the consideration of the matter, whether or not you are also exercising
your right to speak.

planning meeting because you have or you could reasonably be perceived as
having judged (or reserve the right to judge) the matter elsewhere, so that this
may be recorded in the minutes.

wish to speak in this capacity before commencement of the
item;

- remove yourself from the member seating area_to the public
gallery for the duration of that item_and do consider whether
you need to leave the room; and

- ensure that your actions are recorded.

Page 4 of 16

| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

e -[ Deleted: 6

s ‘[ Deleted: are ]

_ - - Deleted: decisions can only be
taken after full consideration of
the Planning Officer's report
and information and
consideration at the planning
meeting.

—

do so for the sake of

_ . - | Deleted: but you may prefer to
appearances. ||

| —

-~

U

N ‘[Deleted: 7

- Deleted: 8

2 Deleted: as a Ward/Local
Member

sSEmes

. {Deleted: proper

,{De[eted: v2 _]



Page 21

5 MEMBERSHIP OF PARISH COUNCILS AND OUTSIDE BODIES

5.1 Do be aware that, whilst the Members’ Code of Conduct provides for a
matters which relate to the organisations mentioned below_and if you do not
intend to speak on the matter at the planning meeting, you must exercise your
discretion in deciding whether or not to participate in each case and where:

- you have been significantly involved in the preparation,
] submission or advocacy of a planning proposal on behalf of :_

(a) another local or public authority of which you are a
member; or

(b)a body to which you have been appointed or
nominated by the Council as its representative; or

(c) you are a trustee or company director of the body
submitting the proposal and were appointed by the
Council

__you should always disclose a prejudicial as well as personal
interest and withdraw.

Where vou do intend to speak on a matter at the planning meeting, or are
unsure if you wish to do so, it is advisable to declare that interest at the start of
the meetina, althouagh you are not legally obliged to.

5.2 Do consider yourself able to take part in the debate on a proposal when acting
as part of a consultee body (where you are also a member of the parish council,
for example), provided:

- the proposal does not substantially affect the well-being or
financial standing of the consultee body;

- you make it clear to the consultee body that:

(a) your views are expressed on the limited
information before you only;

(b) you must reserve judgement and the
independence to make up your own mind on
each separate proposal, based on your
overriding duty to the whole community and
not just to the people in that area, ward or
parish, as and when it comes before the
Planning meetings and you hear all of the
relevant information; and

(c) you will not in any way commit yourself as to
how you or others may vote when the
proposal comes bhefore the planning meeting;
and

Page 5 of 16
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

_she {Deleted: prejudicial

J{ Deleted: v2




6

Page 22

- you disclose the personal interest regarding your membership
or role when the planning meeting comes to consider the
proposal.

CABINET MEMBERS

There is no Constitutional or legal reason why a Cabinet member should not also be a
member of the planning meeting and take part in the decision-making processes which are
not part of the executive function.

6.1

6.2

6.3

Be aware that you should not speak or vote as a member of any planning
meeting on any matter which you have discussed at Cabinet unless you have
demonstrated there and can do so at the relevant planning meeting that you
have not predetermined the application.

you may have been seen as advocating a proposal as a Cabinet Member.

Do take the opportunity to exercise separate speaking rights under the Public

7]

7.1

7.2

Speaking Protocol where you have fettered your discretion, but do not have a
personal and prejudicial interest. Where you do :

- advise the democratic services officer or Chairman that you
wish to speak in this capacity before commencement of the
item;

- remove yourself from the member seating area to the public
gallery for the duration of that item and consider leaving the
room after you have spoken; and

- ensure that your actions are recorded

CONTACT WITH APPLICANTS, DEVELOPERS AND OBJECTORS

Do refer those who approach you for planning, procedural or technical advice to
officers.

Don’t agree to any formal meeting with applicants, developers or groups of
objectors where you can avoid it_and particularly between the submission of an
application and the planning meeting where it is to be determined. Where you
feel that a formal meeting would be useful in clarifying the issues, you should
never seek to arrange that meeting yourself but should request the Head of
Planning and Policy organise it. The officer will then ensure that those present
at the meeting are advised from the start that the discussions will not bind the
authority to any particular course of action_and that views expressed are
provisional, that the meeting is properly recorded on the application file and the
record of the meeting is disclosed when the application is considered by the
Planning meetings.

Page 6 of 16

| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

e {Deleted: in

,{ Deleted: v2



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Page 23

Do otherwise:
- follow the rules on lobbying;

- consider whether or not it would be prudent in the
circumstances to make notes when contacted; and

- report to the Head of Planning and Policy any significant
contact with the applicant and other parties, explaining the
nature and purpose of the contacts and your involvement in
them, and ensure that this is recorded on the planning file.

- ask relevant questions for the purpose of clarifying your
understanding of the proposals but do not express any strong
view or state how you or other Councillors might vote.

In addition in respect of presentations by applicants/developers:

Don’t attend a planning presentation unless an officer is present and/or it has
been organised by officers.

Do ask relevant questions for the purposes of clarifying your understanding of
the proposals.

Do remember that a presentation is not part of the formal process of debate and
determination of any subsequent application, this will be carried out by the
appropriate Planning meeting of the planning authority.

Do be aware that a presentation is a form of lobbying and you must not express
any strong view or state how you or other Councillors might vote.

PRE APPLICATION DISCUSSIONS

It is recognised that pre-application discussions can be of great benefit to the planning

process, however, this may create some risks for Councillors and for the integrity of the

decision making process and therefore they should only take place within clear parameters

and governance arrangements and always with officers present and a written record of the

discussions made and kept.

79

Do ensure that if you are involved by an officer in pre-application discussions

7.10

that it is made clear that the discussions will not bind the Council to making a
particular decision and that any views expressed are personal and provisional,
as by their very nature not all relevant information will be available and no
formal consultation with interested parties will have taken place.

Do not seek to give advice in pre-application discussions upon policies within

the Development Plan and other material considerations that may be relevant to
a particular proposal or be drawn into negotiations. Ask officers to deal with any

Page 7 of 16

Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

,4 Deleted: v2 ]



Page 24

of these points to ensure a consistent and co-ordinated approach from the

Council.

Tl Do respect a request for confidentiality where there is a legitimate reason
justifying non-disclsoure. Seek advice from the officers present if you are
unsure.

T2 Do seek to provide information on matters of fact. local knowledge and

geography rather than the merits of any proposed application.

7:13 Don't use your position to improperly influence decisions in pre-application
meetings.
7.14 Do ask for an officer briefing on the content of pre-application meetings if you

are uncomfortable about attending those meetings yourself.

8 LOBBYING OF COUNCILLORS

8.1 Do explain to those lobbying or attempting to lobby you that, whilst you can
listen to what is said, it prejudices your impartiality and therefore your ability to
participate in the planning meetings decision-making to express an intention to
vote one way or another or such a firm point of view that it amounts to the same
thing.

8.2 Do remember that your overriding duty is to the whole community not just to the
people in your ward and, taking account of the need to make decisions
impartially, that you should not improperly favour, or appear to improperly
favour, any person, company, group or locality.

8.3 Don't accept gifts or hospitality from any person involved in or affected by a
planning proposal. If a degree of hospitality is entirely unavoidable, ensure it is
of a minimum, its acceptance is declared as soon as possible and remember to
register the gift or hospitality where its value is over £25.

8.4 Do copy or pass on any lobbying correspondence you receive to the Head of

Planning and Policy at the earliest opportunity_or declare the receipt of lobbying _-- { peleted: and

information at the planning meeting.

8.5 Do promptly refer to the Head of Planning and Policy any offers made to you of
planning gain or constraint of development, through a proposed s.106 Planning
Obligation or otherwise.

8.6 Do inform the Monitoring Officer where you feel you have been exposed to
undue or excessive lobbying or approaches (including inappropriate offers of
gifts or hospitality), who will in turn advise the appropriate officers to follow the
matter up.

8.7 Do note that, unless you have a personal and prejudicial interest, you will not
have fettered your discretion or breached this Planning Protocol through:

- listening or receiving viewpoints from residents or other
interested parties;

I Deleted: v2

Page 8 of 16 i
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East y4



|

9

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

Page 25

- making comments to residents, interested parties, other
Councillors or appropriate officers, provided they do not
consist of or amount to pre-judging the issue and you make
clear you are keeping an open mind;

- seeking information through appropriate channels; or

- being a vehicle for the expression of opinion or speaking at
the meeting as a Ward Member, provided you explain your
actions at the start of the meeting or item and make it clear
that, having expressed the opinion or ward/local view, you
have not committed yourself to vote in accordance with those
views and will make up your own mind having heard all the
facts and listened to the debate.

LOBBYING BY COUNCILLORS

Don'’t become a member of, lead or represent an organisation whose primary
purpose is to lobby to promote or oppose planning proposals. If you do, you will
have fettered your discretion and are likely to have a personal and prejudicial
interest and have to withdraw.

Do register your membership of any lobby group.

Do declare the existence and nature of your interest in any lobby group at
Planning meeting meetings so that members of the public are informed about
interests that may relate to your decisions. Often this will be a personal interest
and you can continue to participate but note that it can sometimes be a
prejudicial interest or lead to allegations of bias or predetermination and in those
circumstances you must withdraw from the meeting.

Do not take part in any matter which relates directly to the lobby group of which
you are a member rather than to the views it holds. If the Planning meeting is
discussing a planning application submitted by the group you should consider
that you have a prejudicial interest and should act accordingly.

Do weigh up the following factors where your lobby group has expressed a
public view on a matter and consider whether a reasonable member of the
public, knowing the relevant facts, would think that you appear biased. The
factors are:

- the nature of the matter to be discussed

- the nature of your involvement with the lobby group

- the publicly expressed views of the lobby group

- what you have said or done in relation to the particular issue

Do not become a member of an organisation whose primary purpose is to
promote or oppose specific planning proposals or those within a limited
geographical area, as you may be perceived as having fettered your discretion.

Do remember that if the local branch of a general interest group has béen
vociferous or active on a particular issue or you are closely associated with the
management or decision making process of that organisation such as its

Page 9 of 16

Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

A { Deleted: v2




Page 26

Chairperson or a member of the planning meeting, it will become increasingly
difficult to demonstrate your ability to judge the matter with an open mind and
you may appear biased and therefore you should consider whether it is
appropriate for you to take part in the decision making process.

9.8 Do not publicly support a particular outcome on a proposal within your Ward or
actively campaign for it if you wish to take part in the decision making process.
It would be very difficult for you to demonstrate that you had the necessary
degree of impartiality to properly weigh the arguments presented and the
decision would be open to challenge. Again it is a question of maintaining the
fine balance between a predisposition where your mind is not totally made up
and a predetermination. This would, however, not prevent you from expressing
the views of your constituents provided you are capable of determining the
Application in accordance with the law.

9.9 Do join general interest groups which reflect your areas of interest and which
concentrate on issues beyond particular planning proposals, such as the
Victorian Society, CPRE, Ramblers Association or a local civic society, but
disclose a personal interest where that organisation has made representations
on a particular proposal and make it clear to that organisation and the planning
meeting that you have reserved judgement and the independence to make up
your own mind on each separate proposal.

9.10 Don’t excessively lobby fellow councillors regarding your concerns or views nor
attempt to persuade them that they should decide how to vote in advance of the
meeting at which any planning decision is to be taken. It is difficult to define
“excessively” but you need to consider whether a member of the public,
knowing the facts, would think that, through your representations, the lobbied
member was no longer able to take a view on the matter in the public interest
but had predetermined it.

9.11 Don’t decide or discuss how to vote on any application at any sort of political
group meeting, or lobby any other Member to do so. Political Group Meetings
should never dictate how Councillors should vote on a planning issue.

10  SITE INSPECTIONS

Site Inspections can play a legitimate part in the decision making exercise but must be
limited to inspections by viewing and as a fact finding exercise. They are not to be used to
determine a proposal prior to the meeting of the Planning meetings. It should be noted that
this Section applies to Councillors requests for a Site Inspection and that the Head of
Planning and Palicy may arrange Site Visits Inspections without prior discussion where, in
his professional opinion, there is a real benefit from viewing the site.

It is important to ensure that Councillors taking planning decisions are in possession of all
the facts, including matters that may have been pointed out or come to light during a site
visit. Attendance of Councillors will not only demonstrate that Councillors are fully
informed but will also ensure that high quality consistent and sound decisions are made,
and that the risks of legal challenge are minimised. The expectation is that all Planning
meeting Members will attend all formal site inspections and a record of attendance will be
maintained and monitored.

Page 10 of 16
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East y4

,{ Deleted: v2




Page 27

The Council has a separate protocol that deals with Site Inspections in more detail, the
advice contained within this planning protocol is general advice which is developed further
by the Site Inspection Protocaol.

10.1 Do try to attend site inspections organised by the Council where possible.
10.2 Don’t request a site inspection unless you feel it is strictly necessary because:

- particular site factors are significant in terms of the weight
attached to them relative to other factors or the difficulty of
their assessment in the absence of a site inspection; or

- there are significant policy or precedent implications and
specific site factors need to he carefully addressed; or

details of the proposed development cannot be ascertained
from plans and any supporting information to Councillors
satisfaction at the planning meeting; or

- where design considerations are of the highest importance
particularly in relation to the surrounding locality.

10.3 Do ensure that any information that you gained from the site inspection is
reported back to the Planning meetings, so that all Councillors have the same
information.

10.4 Do ensure that you treat the site inspection only as an opportunity to seek

information and to observe the site.

10.5 Do ask the officers at the site inspection questions or seek clarification from
them on matters which are relevant to the site inspection.

10.6 Do be prepared to listen to and ask questions of fact from the Applicant or other
parties but do not be drawn into arguments or detailed discussions on the
individual merits of an application or give the impression that you have made up
your mind. The decision can only be made at the Planning meeting and you
should make this clear to any applicant or other party and suggest that they
make written representations or use of the Public Speaking arrangements and
direct them to, or inform, the officer present.

10.7 Don’t express opinions or views to anyone, and remember that your conduct on
a site inspection may inadvertently suggest that you have already formed a
view.

10.8 Don’t enter a site, which is subject to a proposal other than as part of an official

site inspection, even in response to an invitation, as this may give the
impression of bias unless:

- vyou feel it is essential for you to visit the site other than
through attending the official site inspection;

Page 11 of 16
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

_____________________________________________

K{Deleted: v2
/




Page 28

- you have first spoken to the Head of Planning and Policy
about your intention to do so and why (which will be
recorded on the file) and

- you can ensure you will comply with these good practice
rules on site inspections.
11 PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS
| The Council has a separate protocol that deals with the procedure for Public Speaking at

meetings in more detail, the advice contained within this planning protocol is general
advice which is developed further by the Public Speaking Protocol.

11.1 Don't allow members of the public to communicate with you during the planning
meeting proceedings (orally or in writing) other than through the scheme for
public speaking, as this may give the appearance of bias.

11.2 Do ensure that you comply with the Council’s Protocol for Public Speaking at
Planning Meetings.

11.3 All Councillors are entitled to speak at a planning meeting in accordance with
the Public Speaking Protocol either as an individual, representative or ward
member. However, where you might be regarded as having a personal and
prejudicial interest in the application then you may attend and speak in
accordance with the protocol but only for the purpose of making representations,
answering questions or giving evidence relating to the matter in the same
manner as would apply to a normal member of the public. Immediately after
doing so you must leave the meeting room whilst the meeting considers the
proposal even though members of the public may remain._Planning Councillors
who have pre-determined a matter may also exercise public speaking rights and
should consider withdrawing from the meeting room having spoken on a matter
to counter any potential suggestion that you influenced the remaining members
by your continued presence.

12 OFFICERS

Councillors and officers have different but complementary roles. Both serve the public but
Councillors are responsible to the electorate whilst officers are responsible to the Council
as a whole. Their relationship is based upon mutual trust and understanding and this must
never be abused or compromised. Instructions to officers can only be given through a
decision of the Council, the Cabinet, Board or Committee or under delegated powers and
not by individual Councillors acting outside those powers.

12.1 Don’t put pressure on officers to put forward a particular recommendation.
(This does not prevent you from asking questions or submitting views to the
Head of Planning and Policy, which may be incorporated into any committee
report.)

12.2 Do recognise that officers are part of a management structure and only discuss
a proposal, outside of any arranged meeting, with the Head of Planning and
Policy or those officers who are authorised by the Head of Planning and Policy
to deal with the proposal at a Member level.

Page 12 of 16
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

{ Deleted: v2
’



12.3

12.4

13

Page 29

Do recognise and respect that officers involved in the processing and
determination of planning matters must act in accordance with the Council's
Code of Conduct for Officers and their professional codes of conduct, primarily
the Royal Town Planning Institute’s Code of Professional Conduct. As a result,
planning officers' views, opinions and recommendations will be presented on
the basis of their overriding obligation of professional independence, which may
on occasion be at odds with the views, opinions or decisions of the planning
meeting or its Councillors

Do be aware of the Member/Officer Relations Protocol.

DECISION MAKING

of planning applications in more detail, the advice contained within this planning protocol is
general advice which is developed further by the Call In Procedure.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

Do ensure that, if you request a proposal to go before the planning meeting
rather than be determined through officer delegation, that your planning reasons
are recorded and repeated in the report to the planning meeting._Take care that
the wording of your planning reasons do not suggest that you have already
formed a view on the application, if you have not done so, and have therefore
fettered your discretion. Seek advice on this from officers if necessary.

Do come to meetings with an open mind and demonstrate that you are open-
minded.

2004 and make decisions in accordance with the Development Plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Do come to your decision only after due consideration of all of the information
reasonably required upon which to base a decision. If you feel there is
insufficient time to digest new information or that there is simply insufficient
information before you, request that further information. If necessary, defer or
refuse the application.

Don’t vote or take part in the meeting's discussion on a proposal unless you

the matter.

Do have recorded the reasons for the planning meeting's decision to grant,
refuse or defer any proposal.

Do delegate to the Head of Planning and Policy the drafting of conditions that
the Planning meeting may wish to add or amend when considering an
application, ensuring that an explanation of why the change or addition is
required is given to the planning meeting.

Do make sure that if you are proposing, seconding or supporting a decision
contrary to officer recommendations or the development plan that you clearly

Page 13 of 16

Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

g ‘[Deleted: Council

I ‘{ Deleted: 54A of the Town and

Country Planning Act 1990

L {Deleted: debate

,{ Deleted: v2




Page 30

identify and wunderstand the planning reasons leading to this
conclusion/decision. These reasons must be given prior to the vote and be
recorded. Be aware that you may have to justify the resulting decision by giving
evidence in the event of any challenge.

13.9 Do, where necessary, consider the drafting of conditions for sensitive
applications that the planning meeting wish to approve against Officer
recommendation at the next meeting of the planning meeting to allow Officers to
formulate appropriate conditions and provide the planning meeting with any
relevant further new information.

13.10 Do, where necessary, consider deferring the consideration of an application to
another meeting if there is a very strong objection from officers on the validity of
reasons, to allow the proposed reasons to be tested and discussed further.

1344 Do comply with the Protocols adopted by the Strategic Planning Board.

14  TRAINING

14.1 Don’t participate in decision-making at meetings dealing with planning matters if
you have not attended the mandatory planning training prescribed by the
Council.

14.2 Do endeavour to attend any other specialised training sessions provided, since

these will be designed to extend your knowledge of planning law, regulations,
procedures, Codes of Practice and the Development Plans beyond the
minimum referred to above and thus assist you in carrying out your role properly
and effectively.

15  INVOLVEMENT IN SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS

The guidance in respect of planning obligations is similar to that of planning conditions in
that they must be relevant to planning and directly related to the proposed development if
they are to be taken into account in making a decision on a planning application. Local
Planning Authorities should not grant planning permission for unacceptable development
because of unrelated benefits offered by the applicant and should not be unduly influenced
by any benefits offered.

15.1 Do remember that requirements to be included within Section 106 Agreements
should be considered and discussed at pre-application stage. The Officers will
provide advice on general requirements, but if you are aware of any additional
potential requirements please refer these to the Head of Planning and Policy as
soon as you become aware of them.

15.2 Do remember that the purpose of Section 106 Agreements is to help make
acceptable, development which would otherwise be unacceptable in planning
terms, by prescribing the nature of the development, or compensating for loss
or damage created by the development, or to mitigate a developments impact.
They must therefore be relevant to planning and relate fairly and reasonably to
the development.

Page 14 of 16
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4




Page 31

15.3 Do include the content of Section 106 Agreements in the debate that takes
place at planning meetings, whether you are a member of the planning meeting
or a visiting Member who wishes to speak on the application.

15.4 Don’t hold formal or informal meetings with Applicants, Developers and
Objectors over the contents of potential Section 106 agreements. If you feel that
a meeting would be useful to clarify the issues, you should ask the Head of
Planning and Policy to arrange such a meeting. In this way the relevant Officers
can be at the meeting, and those present can be made aware that the
discussions will not bind the authority, and that the meeting can be properly
recorded on the application file and the record of the meeting disclosed when
the application is considered.

16.5 Do remember that it is imperative that a Ward Councillor's role continues after
the completion of the Section 106 Agreement, by assisting Officers in ensuring
that Section 106 Agreements are complied with. This includes noting when
development is being undertaken and assisting Officers in ensuring triggers
within Section 106 Agreements are complied with. Ward Councillors should
contact Officers for any information on completed Section 106 Agreements.

16  MONITORING AND REVIEW

16.1 The Head of Planning and Policy will report annually to the Standards
Committee regarding whether the arrangements set out in this Planning
Protocol have been complied with and will included any proposals for
amendment in the light of any issues that have arisen during the year.

16.2 In particular, the Head of Planning and Policy shall monitor the following:-

(a) the number of complaints made about breaches of the Planning Protocol
and the outcome of those complaints;

(b) the number of appeals upheld;

(c) any external inspection reports in respect of relevant issues;

(d) the level of awareness of the Planning Protocol among Councillors and
Officers; and

(e) the number of Ombudsman reports finding maladministration by
Councillors in the conduct of planning issues.

17 BREACHES OF THE PLANNING PROTOCOL

Maintaining high ethical standards enhances the general reputation of the Council, its
Councillors and its officers. Open and transparent decision making enhances local
democracy and should lead to better informed citizens. This Planning Protocol, along with
Cheshire East's Members Code of Conduct are intended to promote these standards.

17.1 Do be aware of your responsibilities under this Code and the Members Code of
Conduct.
17.2 Do report any apparent breaches of either the Code of Conduct or the Planning

Protocol to the Monitoring Officer.

Page 15 of 16
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East v4

. { Deleted: v2
/’




Page 32

17.3 Do seek advice if you are in doubt.

17.4 Failure to comply with the Members Code of Conduct may lead to a complaint
to the Standards Committee who can, in certain circumstances disqualify a
Councillor. Failure to comply with this Planning Protocol may lead to a finding of
Maladministration by the Ombudsman or could lead to a decision being
challenged in the courts.

17.5 Allegations on any breach of this Planning Protocol by Members may be
referred to the Monitoring Officer for referral to the Standards Committee, the
relevant Leader and/or Chief Whip of the political group.

,{Deleted: v2
/

Page 16 of 16 ,
| Planning Protocol — Cheshire East yv4 ]



Page 33 Agenda ltem 7

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 27" September 2010
Report of: Monitoring Officer
Subject: Standards in Partnerships Protocol

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report provides an update on the work undertaken to develop a
protocol for values and behaviours for use within partnerships.

2.0 Recommendations
2.1. The Committee is invited to

i) endorse the action taken by the Local Strategic Partnership to
integrate the Standards in Partnerships Protocol into the LSP
Partnership Agreement

ii) request the Head of the Partnership Team to produce an Annual
Report for this Committee on the effectiveness of the
Partnership Agreement

iii) request the Monitoring Officer to promote the agreement across
Cheshire East for those Partnerships outside the Local Strategic
Partnership Framework

iv) request the Constitution Committee to consider incorporating
the agreed Protocol into the Constitution as part of its ongoing
review

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1  High standards are a cornerstone of good governance and should
become embedded in the culture of organisations. It is as important to
achieve good governance in partnership arrangements as it is in
individual organisations.

3.3 The development of a “Standards in Partnerships” Protocol will help to
achieve this.

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1 Not applicable.



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

11.0

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Page 34

Local Ward Members
Not applicable.
Policy Implications

None. There is no policy on the development of such a partnership
arrangement.

Financial Implications for Transition Costs
None identified.

Legal Implications

None identified

Risk Management

No risks identified.

Background and Options

Since the Autumn of 2008, Manchester City Council has assisted
Standards for England in its work to develop a protocol for working in
partnership. The key aim of the project was to develop a shared set of
values and behaviours which will underpin partnership work.

At its meeting on 23 November 2009 the Committee established a
working group of Members and Officers be established, to develop a
local protocol for use across Cheshire East. In its work, Officers will
involve partners as appropriate.

The working group met on several occasions and prepared a draft
Protocol for the Local Strategic Partnership The draft Partnership
Protocol was considered by the Cheshire East LSP Executive on 12
April 2010. At that time, the Executive was of the view that it required
further consideration to assess the likely impact on statutory services
such as Children’s and Adult Services, as well as Safer Communities,
in terms of access to confidential material.

The Protocol was considered again at the Executive meeting held on 17
May 2010, and it was resolved —

“That the principles contained within the draft Protocol be endorsed
and developed and adapted for inclusion within Cheshire East’s
Partnership Agreements”.



11.5

13.0

Page 35

A further meeting of the working group took place on 15" September
and the Locality Business Manager (Partnerships Team) reported that
the Protocol had been incorporated into the recently published
Partnership Agreement that was going to be considered by the Local
Strategic Partnership Executive Board on 23 September. The
Agreement is attached at Appendix 1 and the Partnership Team
agreed to report annually to this Committee on its operation and to help
promote the Protocol with partnerships outside of the Local Strategic
Partnership Framework.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by
contacting the report writer:

Name: Chris Chapman
Designation: Monitoring Officer

Tel No
Email:

; 01625 529922
chris.chapman@cheshireeast.gov.uk



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37

PARTNERSHIPS FOR ACTION IN CHESHIRE EAST
PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

1. Purpose of the Agreement

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a framework within which the members
of the Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East (PACE) can demonstrate their
commitment to support and participate in the Partnership.

The Agreement is not a binding contractual agreement and is intended to show
commitment to the aims of the Partnership and to the other members of the
Partnership.

2, What is Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East

PACE is the Local Strategic Partnership for Cheshire East and it brings together, at
a local level, all of the different parts of the public, private, business, community and
voluntary sectors so that different initiatives and services support each other and
work together across Cheshire East.

Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East Structure

Cheshire East Assembly
A

A 4

LSP Executive Board < o Partnership
N Management Group

A

A A A A

A 4 A 4 A 4 A 4 A 4

Safer Cheshire East Children's Trust Health & Well Being Economic Environment and
Partnership (CDRP) (Thematic Group) (Thematic Group) Development and Sustainability
(Thematic Group) Learning Skills (Thematic Group)

(Thematic Group)

A A A A A
\ 4 \ 4 \ 4 A 4

A 4
Local Area Partnerships (LAPs)

Nantwich Crewe Congleton Macclesfield Poynton Wilmslow Knutsford

I

Neighbourhood & Community Partnerships

Within the terms of this Agreement, the constituent bodies will be known collectively
as Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East (PACE) and will meet periodically
together as the Cheshire East Assembly.



3.

Page 38

Partnership Principles

We will have regard to the following principles in how we work:

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Achieve intended outcomes

Our priorities are evidence-based and our decision-making is transparent.
We will:

O O T
SN = N N

L

Share resources to achieve joint outcomes

Ensure that decision-making is transparent

Be committed to continuous improvement

Ensure that claims of improved performance are based on clear
evidence

Establish accountability both across the partnership (horizontally)

and within each organisation (vertically)

Public interest

We act in the interest of the public and demonstrate value. We will:

e)
f)

g9)

Focus on long-term as well as short-term issues

Act in the interests of the public good over individual interests

Consider visibility, input from the public and informing the public of

the Council’s activities and the rationale behind decisions.

Demonstrate to the community how we are achieving publicly

valued outcomes
Agree a protocol for the handling of complaints that relates to our
joint work

Promote and ensure public engagement

Consider public access to partnerships (and documentation) when
appropriate

Use appropriate, unambiguous and simple language

Building partners’ capacity

We act to build capacity in our partnership. We will:

Be committed to developing individual partners’ skills to achieve our
aims

Encourage partners to be confident working outside of their
organisational culture

Be open to partners’ suggestions and help

Actively encourage ideas and innovation

Ensure that decision-making is transparent

Establish accountability both across the partnership (horizontally)
and within each organisation (vertically)

Value and respect each other

We respect and value everyone’s contribution. We will:

a) Actively promote a “no-blame” culture



Page 39

b) Ensure that partners contribute appropriately and openly

c) Acknowledge the capabilities of all members

d) Recognise and embrace the role of voluntary and community sector
partners

e) Avoid dominance by individuals

f) Respect each other’s roles and needs

g) Actively encourage the participation of all partnership members

h) Build effective working relationships with each other

i) Recognise the value of all partners’ contributions

3.5 Act ethically

We act ethically. We are open and objective and encourage constructive
challenge. We will:

a) Be honest and objective

b) Support partners both to understand and constructively challenge any
poor behaviour

c) Agree how we will achieve democratic accountability

d) Ensure that our dialogue is open and transparent

e) Declare conflicts of interest and address them

f) Make sure that the purpose of all meetings is made clear

g) Agree a mechanism for “whistle-blowing” and dealing with
complaints

h) Ensure that “whistle-blowers” are supported

3.6  Aligning strategies and networks

We harness our collective efforts through joint planning, delivery and
governance arrangements. This must be clear evidence-based. We will:

a) Encourage all partners to actively shape the strategy and share
information

b) Ensure that partners can influence the decision-making of partner
organisations

c) Allow sufficient time and capacity to be given to understand an
issue and to reflect on its impact

d) Make sure that actions taken by the partnership are clear, time-
limited and task-orientated

e) Ensure that agreed actions are carried out

f) By working through local Area Partnerships, focus collective effort
on what really matters, delivering improved outcomes for local
people and places.

4, Vision, Aims, Objectives and Priorities for Action of PACE

The Partnership’s vision for Cheshire East in 2025, as expressed in the Sustainable
Community Strategy, “Ambition for All”, is:

“Cheshire East is a prosperous place where all people thrive, regardless of
where they live. We have beautiful productive countryside, unique towns
with individual character and a wealth of history and culture. The people of



Page 40

Cheshire East live active, fulfilling lives and get involved in making their
communities safe, healthy and sustainable places to live”

The aims of PACE are:

a)

b)

To agree a vision, key priorities and actions to tackle economic, social and
environmental concerns for Cheshire East

To work together as equal partners and with the community to prepare a
sustainable community strategy and plans which will define where we are
now, where we want to be in the future and how we will get there and to
prepare it in accordance with the principles of sustainable development

To bring together local partnerships, plans and initiatives for service providers
to work together with the community to meet local needs and priorities

To devise a Local Area Agreement to improve performance locally

To work together in partnership to avoid duplication, additional costs,
conflicting strategies and consultation fatigue

To jointly develop review mechanisms

To liaise, where appropriate, with neighbouring Local Strategic Partnerships,
where there is a mutual benefits and sharing of good practice

The objectives of PACE are:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

To promote equality and diversity and improve the quality of life for everyone
who lives in, works in or visits Cheshire East

To strengthen partnership working to ensure that everyone is working in the
same strategic direction, sharing resources, information and expertise to
address key issues and local problems

To maximise the use of existing resources across all sectors and access
additional funding from local, national and international sources for the benefit
of the people of Cheshire East

To contribute to sustainable development locally, regionally, nationally and
global.

To improve engagement and consultation across the Cheshire East area

The seven priorities for action agreed in “Ambition for All” are:

5.

O OO T O
S N N N N

—h
N

Nurture strong communities

Create conditions for business growth
Unlock the potential of our towns

Support our young people

Plan for the needs of future generations
Prepare for an increasingly older population
Drive out the sources of poor health

Responsibilities and Accountabilities

Wherever possible, we will look to develop common frameworks for collecting and
sharing information by committing to develop aligned strategies and protocols, which
includes sharing information, data, intelligence, performance information, data
quality, core teams and alignment and pooling of resources.



5.1

5.2

Page 41

Resources

All of the members of the constituent bodies will need to identify how they will
support the work of PACE, both in terms of general allocation of resources
and in terms of the specific allocation of resources designed to support a
project for which they are responsible, or involved in, but which is to be
undertaken within the framework of the Cheshire East Sustainable Community
Strategy.

It is envisaged this may be through:

e Members of the Partnership giving general support to the partnership both
through the commitment of staff time and where appropriate through the
commitment of both revenue and capital resources. Where necessary it is
intended that whenever such resources are made available, they are
committed to be spent within the remit established by the Cheshire East
Sustainable Community Strategy.

e The Members of the Partnership may also, when appropriate, commit
themselves to making available resources that would normally be spent by
them in their own right in support of individual members’ programmes, but
where those programmes form part of the Cheshire East Sustainable
Community Strategy it has been agreed that the partners will commit those
resources through the Partnership.

e Commissioning services to meet local priorities through shared resources
and budgets.

At all times any funding or resource will still be the responsibility of the
member organisation. It is not proposed that the Partnership will have a
budget or specific funding solely for the use of the Partnership. Existing
resources or grants through normal working practice of the members will be
the main source of funding. This will be reviewed as appropriate to meet the
aims of the Cheshire East Sustainable Community Strategy.

Over time Members will need to consider the best way to support the work of
the Partnership with dedicated staff and will help identify possible funding
available from the Members and other sources.

The Agreement records the need for flexibility, recognising that each of the
Members will have different audit and public probity demands to satisfy.
However, within those constraints, the Members agree to commit themselves
to operating through the Cheshire East Local Strategic Partnership in
accordance with the Cheshire East Sustainable Community Strategy 2010-
2025.

Communications
The Communications Strategy will take account of the following:

e The promotion, branding and image of the Cheshire East Local Strategic
Partnership;



5.3

5.4

9.5

5.6

Page 42

e The issue of press releases and public relations material in relation to the
activities of the partnership.

Community Engagement

A comprehensive engagement strategy will be developed setting out the
Partnership’s approach to engaging and empowering communities of
Cheshire East. The strategy will also set out how the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment will be informed through quantitative and qualitative information
derived from engagement with communities.

Performance Management

The Partnership Performance Management Framework will be crucial to the
delivery of the Sustainable Community Strategy, the Local Area Agreement
(LAA) targets and other key partnership improvement priorities.

The Framework is a way of ensuring that each tier of the partnership is clear
on their roles and responsibilities and progress against the objectives are
being monitored. This needs to be a structured approach that follows the
same format through the tiers and horizontally across the partnership groups
at each tier and has the following principles:

e The Framework process should be kept as simple as possible (Plan, Do,
Review)

e Clearly links all parts of the partnership framework (thematic with local,
strategic with delivery)

e Ensure roles, responsibilities and levels of accountability are clearly
understood

e Provide an understanding of the cycle and routes through which
performance needs to be reported

e Enable the Partnership to be able to monitor both the outcomes of their
work as measured against targets and their progress with the
implementation of Delivery Plans

e Share performance information and performance reporting to give an
upwards account and help partners recognise and assess their own
contributions to joint working and the value of all contributions.

Reporting Mechanisms

The Partnerships in Action Cheshire East Executive Board shall report
progress on an annual basis to the wider LSP Assembly. Additionally partners
will regularly report progress under their own governance arrangements.

The Cheshire East Sustainable Community Strategy will be the key document
for the Partnership. Its broad principles, and identified issues and actions, will
provide the basis for establishment of Thematic Groups or to commission
existing Thematic Groups to deliver policies, action and meet agreed targets.

Declaration of Interest

Members of the PACE Executive Board and Thematic Groups shall declare
any financial, personal, business or organisational interest verbally and/or in



5.7

6.

Page 43

writing. The Executive Board and Thematic Groups shall note any such
declarations in the minutes and notes of their meetings.

The minutes and notes of meetings including any such declarations shall be
available for public scrutiny at all times. The original documentation shall be
available on request and the information shall be published or distributed
electronically or in paper form.

The judgement of whether a declaration is required, should be on the basis
that non declaration would be prejudicial to the aims, objectives and spirit of
the Partnership, or, that such an interest can reasonably be judged to be
mostly to the benefit of the individual or organisation making the declaration
rather than mostly to the benefit of the Partnership.

Confidentiality & Data Sharing

Partnership meetings may occasionally receive information, which is not in the
public domain, often relating to individuals or commercially sensitive matters. It
is the responsibility of each individual to ensure that this information remains
confidential to the meeting, unless prior authorisation has been given by the
Chair for this to be discussed elsewhere.

It is further agreed that where such information is confidential for example for
reasons of commercial, customer or client confidentiality, that members shall
at all times abide by the requirements of the Data Protection Act.

It is agreed that, wherever possible, Partnership members shall share
information about their organisations, services and customers where that
information is relevant to the aims and objectives of the wider Partnership and
the Sustainable Community Strategy and it's constituent plans and strategies.

Sector Roles and Responsibilities
Voluntary, Community & Faith Sector

e Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector representatives will use their
particular skills, network of contacts and knowledge of local needs and
environment to assist with identified objectives and priorities at Executive
Board and Thematic level. Because of this local knowledge of local need
and the impact of service provision on local people, these representatives
will also link in with the framework at the local level through the Local Area
Partnerships

e Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector will help facilitate a community
development approach to identifying assets within our communities
(people, organisations and environment) to enable strategic bodies and
communities to jointly design services based in our neighbourhoods and
communities

e Organisations within the Sector directly provide services to our
communities, and this support of local groups, communities and individuals
at a local level helps formulate and local community cohesion

e The Local Area Partnerships structure will assist in formulating and
articulating the development needs, aspirations and priorities of the Sector.
It will enable the sector to contribute actively to decision-making, as well



Page 44

as monitor and evaluate how well improvements are being delivered on the
ground.

Private Sector

e The role of the business sector representative on the Executive Board is to
provide a private sector perspective on the work of the partnership

e Businesses are key consumers and contributors to many local services,
activities and amenities and play a vital part in the health and wealth of our
local neighbourhoods.

e Business representatives seek to contribute actively to meeting the wider
social and environmental improvement goals of our area

e The health and well being of local employees and the impact of the local
economy has a direct impact on the well being of local businesses and
communities alike

Public Sector

e Public Sector partners recognise their responsibility for ensuring that their
core resources and services are directed to support the improvement
goals, priorities and targets determined by the constituent bodies

e All public sector partners will ensure that their respective business plans
are complimentary to the wider sustainable community strategy and it's
aims and objectives

e The democratically accountable role of Cheshire East Councillors as a
voice of local communities, and the variety of roles elected members have
such as cabinet, committee, policy development, scrutiny overview, ward
and LAP representation.

e The local authority and public sector partners have a legal duty to consult
and co-operate with the local private, voluntary and community sector in
developing the local area agreement

Dispute Resolution

The PACE Executive Board in consultation with the Chairs of the Thematic
Groups shall resolve any disputes. The handling and escalation of complaints
that relate to our joint work will follow an agreed protocol.

Partners are entering into this Agreement so that they have a framework to
oversee the development of the partnerships, the production of the Cheshire
East Sustainable Community Strategy and it's subsequent implementation.

Cheshire East LSP recognise the need to keep the operation of the
partnership within this Agreement under constant review. It recognises that
changes in legislation may amend the way partners deliver services in the
future.



Page 45

Appendix: Roles and Responsibilities
Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East - Assembly

The Assembly will focus on major ‘state of the borough’ issues. The Assembly will
have a broader consultation and engagement role, bringing together wide range of
issues and people. It will have a key role in shaping the development and
implementation of the new Sustainable Community Strategy and will have.

PACE will hold an annual stakeholder conference, called the Assembly. The
Assembly’s role is to provide the overall direction for the work of the Partnership and
to oversee progress towards the targets in the Sustainable Community Strategy. The
Assembly brings together representatives from across the community and promotes
better understanding of each other and local issues. It also ensures that the views of
a wide audience are considered in developing the Strategy.

The Assembly has the following responsibilities:

e To provide information to delegates on the partnership work that is currently
happening in Cheshire East

e To engage with the wider community of those living and working in the
Borough and give them the opportunity to input into the work of the Local
Strategic Partnership through identifying priorities for action and developing
solutions

e To provide the opportunity for networking and improved communication
between people working in the local area

e To inform the long-term vision for Cheshire East, promoting the social,
economic and environmental well being of residents and businesses and
promoting sustainable development.

e To support partnership working to improve service outcomes and deliver the
Community Strategy.

e To encourage innovation and the efficient and effective use of local resources
and assets.

e To promote and foster the values of community engagement, equalities,
neighbourhood renewal, cohesion and sustainability.



Page 46

Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East - Executive Board

The PACE Executive Board has the responsibility for further developing partnership
working arrangements, both at a strategic and local level. The membership currently
consists of the following partners:

Leader of the Council, Cheshire East Council

Chief Executive, Cheshire East Council

Chief Superintendant, Cheshire Constabulary

Cheshire East Unitary Performance Manager, Cheshire Fire & Rescue
Chief Executive, Central & East Cheshire Primary Care Trust

Chief Executive, South Cheshire Chamber representing the Business Sector
Cheshire East Housing Delivery Partnership

Dean, MMU Cheshire Education Sector Representative

Cheshire East Voluntary & Community Sector Congress

The PACE Executive Board is the primary decision making body of the partnership. It
will take guidance from the Assembly and have responsibility for developing and
securing delivery of the Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement

This will include the following roles:

(1)

(2)

Audit local needs, issues and priorities to inform an overall vision for Cheshire
East, which reflects diversity and local variation. Use community asset
mapping to recognise and build on the knowledge, skills and capacity within
our neighbourhoods and communities

Build consensus within and across the Partnerships Framework on priorities,
desired outcomes and key measures of success to improve quality of life in
the communities of Cheshire East and inform negotiating frameworks such as
the Local Area Agreement, taking account of local, sub-regional, regional and
national imperatives, and from this develop and deliver the Cheshire East
Sustainable Community Strategy reflecting community needs and aspirations.

Support the relationships needed for effective partner participation and
partnership working within and across the Partnerships Framework by sharing
information and knowledge, co-ordinating people and groups and making
appropriate links to avoid duplication whilst ensuring that all matters are dealt
with appropriately.

Co-ordinate local and borough wide action in relation to cross - cutting issues
across the public, private, community and voluntary sectors.

Receive annual progress reports and more frequent ‘exception reports’ from
the Thematic Partnerships and Local Area Partnerships in relation to the
delivery of their respective plans and strategies and consider, agree and take
any action necessary to assist with the delivery of the vision, the achievement
of outcomes and the realisation of benefits to the communities of Cheshire
East.

Ensure that the outcomes and achievements of the constituent bodies of the
Cheshire East Partnerships Framework are communicated to the communities
of Cheshire East.



Page 47

Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East - Thematic Groups

The Thematic Groups are responsible for the delivery of the Sustainable Community
Strategy outcomes and LAA targets that will guide operational delivery.

In addition, there will be specific strategic development responsibilities.

e Develop and deliver appropriate strategies and actions for the achievement of
objectives relevant to their particular thematic area.

e Specifically, to be responsible for the delivery of the Sustainable Community
Strategy outcomes and LAA targets within that theme.

It is acknowledged that the Thematic Partnerships will have their own detailed terms
of reference according to needs and wider circumstances. However, it is suggested
that each Partnership incorporate the following ‘core’ terms of reference to support
their role within the broader Cheshire East Partnerships Framework. Any existing
terms of reference should not conflict with the Core Terms of Reference. Where
such conflict is considered to exist, the matter should be referred to the Executive
Board for further consideration.

Thematic Groups will have the following role:

(1) Develop and deliver appropriate thematic action plans to support and
contribute to the overall vision for the communities of the Cheshire East area,
which reflects diversity and local variations across the borough

(2)  Monitor and manage the overall performance of the Thematic Partnership and
its associated projects, through the application of programme/ project
management principles.

(3) Provide annual progress reports and, when necessary, “exception reports” to
the Partnership for Action in Cheshire East Executive Board and Assembly.

(4) Identify to the LSP Executive Board, as necessary, cross cutting issues in
relation to the core theme for further consideration and co-ordination by the
Board

(5) Commission, as necessary, jointly designed service delivery and actions to
address local needs and priorities, which reflects community empowerment
principles.

(6) Deliver the appropriate ‘block’ of the Local Area Agreement as agreed by and
in consultation with the LSP Executive Board

(7) Commission thematic research and consultation to seek community views on
priorities, encourage involvement in identifying solutions and underpin the
development and delivery of the thematic action plans.



Page 48

Partnerships for Action in Cheshire East - Local Area Partnerships

Local Area Partnerships bring together a wide range of people from the statutory,
voluntary and community sectors. By working together, they focus collective effort on
what really matters, delivering improved outcomes for local people and places.

Their role is to improve services, ensure people influence decision making and to
actively engage and empower communities.

In order to achieve this, they will

Support and facilitate local consultation and engagement to gain a shared
understanding of local issues, needs and preferences important to the area.

Focus collective effort and work on issues that cannot be tackled by one
organisation on its own and deliver joint activites (e.g. Not in my
Neighbourhood).

Make a difference by delivering local priorities set out in an Area Plan, which
underpins Cheshire East’s Sustainable Community Strategy.

Balance strategic and local issues, by providing opportunities for communities
to bring local insight to influence decision-making.

Work with the Partnerships in Action Cheshire East Executive Board and
Thematic Partnerships to agree and deliver local activities and projects linked
to the Local Area Agreements targets most relevant to their area.

Share knowledge and resources, to effectively target the delivery of local
services.

Unblock situations and enable joint problem solving between residents and
partners and turbo-charge solutions.

Gather local information on the performance of local services, to enable
continuous improvement.

Actively empower communities through a wide range of approaches, (e.g.
community planning, participatory budgeting, neighbourhood agreements)
resulting in positive community led action.

Local Area Partnership Structure

The Local Area Partnerships operating model is shown diagrammatically as follows:



Page 49

Strategic
pricrities from
CELSP Executive

5 & Thematic
S
“}\\9 Groups
<
O
& =3
Q A
®,
g Plan 2% i
= s © 9
S _ Area \ & E =
Review /5 %
o3 Plan 3
g O~ o & &9
2 B °c P &9
= & N §
o
Q. o
o
2,
',4"'95'

Local priorities
from Area
Assemblies,
MNeighbourhoods &
Communities

LAP Area Assemblies

Each Local Area Partnership will hold 4 Assemblies a year (quarterly) to engage the
wider community and local partners in the work of the LAP. Area Assemblies are
open to and involve anyone who has an interest in making the area better.

The Assemblies will listen to community issues to inform future work, developing
local priorities and setting the course of action of the Area Management Group. They
will capture both long-term issues and local concerns requiring an immediate
response. They will provide a forum, which can act as a local body for consultation
about local issues and developments.

Each Area Assembly will receive up-dates from their Area Management Group, LAP
working groups and partners on progress against actions in the Area Plan.

e Summer Assembly (June/July) will focus on reviewing and evaluating
progress during the last year and plan ahead to develop the following year’'s
plan.

e September Assembly will develop the following year's Area Plan, in time to
realistically inform and influence partners’ business planning and budget
making processes.

e November Assembly will focus on Public Spend, providing an opportunity for
joint consultation on draft budgets.

e Other Assemblies will be themed with open discussion and workshops on a
relevant local issue.

Cheshire East Councillors (LAP Chairmen) will chair the Assembly meetings in their
community leadership role. Community Engagement and Empowerment is a key role
of the Local Area Partnerships. The Area Assemblies will be public and aim to



Page 50

engage local communities. In addition, the Local Area Partnerships are using a wide
range of approaches to engage the full range of community and neighbourhood
groups who are active in an area.

Area Management Group

The Area Management Group membership reflects local need, and includes key
local partners who are responsible for actions in the Area Plan. Area Management
Group will develop the Area Plan, based on the guidance of the Area Assemblies,
delivering appropriate responses to priorities identified by local people. They will
deliver specific localised projects and initiatives, which contribute to the Local Area
Agreement and national indicators as identified by the LSP Executive and Thematic
Partnerships.

Membership

e The Area Management Group will have a maximum membership of 10
people, and will include; local Police Inspector, Fire Station Manager,
Assembly Chairman, Local Area Partnership Manager, Health representative
(Primary Care Trust organising), Registered Social Landlord(s), Town or
Parish Council (elected by ChALC Area Meeting) and other local partners who
are responsible for actions in the Area Plan.

e The group will invite other people to attend individual meetings when required
(e.g. Cheshire East Council Service Managers, Working Group Leads) in
order to address specific issues or actions in the Area

e The chair of the Area Management Groups will be a representatives from a
partner organisations, to demonstrate shared ownership of the Local Area
Partnership.

Commissioning

The Area Management Group will commission services to deliver local priorities
through shared resources & budgets and ensure actions are evidence based and
performance managed. They will need to develop opportunities to improve local
services through different ways of working, enabling joint problem solving, joining up
local activities and delivering joint events.

e Each Local Area Partnership will establish time limited task and finish working
groups to address issues or deliver projects. In cases where there is an
identified gap in commissioning, the LAP will set up a working group to deliver
the agreed action.

e Each Local Area Partnership will have a number of core documents, which
will help inform the development and delivery of its work. These include; the
Area Plan, Area profiles and local intelligence and a Local Communication
Plan.

Neighbourhood Engagement

In addition to the LAP structures and our joint work in neighbourhoods, there are a
large number of other mechanisms, which the LSP and partners use to engage with



Page 51

local people, providing opportunities for them to get involved in local decision
making. Below are some examples:

Town and Parish Conferences
Voluntary sector networks

Faith networks

Town Partnerships
Community/neighbourhood groups
Police Pledge meetings

Ward & neighbourhood meetings
Community Centres and Drop-ins
Consultation events/mechanisms.

Secretariat

Cheshire East Council will provide administrative support for the LSP Executive
Board, including the preparation and despatch of agendas, reports, minutes and
general correspondence in connection with the work of Partnerships in Action
Cheshire East

Secretariat arrangements for the constituent bodies of Partnerships in Action
Cheshire East (PACE) Framework will be provided by the most appropriate
organisation, with a strong commitment from all Partnerships in Action Cheshire East
partners to ensure that the resources, effectiveness and efficiency of each
partnership is maintained and the work programmes identified are clearly supported.



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 Agenda Item 8

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO: STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 27 September 2010
Report of: Head of ICT Security
Subject/Title: ICT Code of Practice for Members

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The ICT Security Policies have been developed and agreed. A Code of
Practice for Staff has been produced to give specific examples and
guidance to aid the interpretation of the detailed policies. A Code of
Practice for Members has also been produced to give specific examples.
This report details the Code of Practice for Members.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1  The Committee is asked to RESOLVE —

That the ICT Code of Practice for Members be adopted by the Standards
Committee as protocol.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendation
3.1  The ICT Code of Practice has been developed by the Corporate
Governance Sub-Group following advice from the Corporate

Governance Group and the ICT Members Panel.

3.2 The Code has been finalised ready for recommendation by the
Standards Committee.

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1 Not applicable

5.0 Local Ward Members
5.1 All Councillors

6.0 Policy Implications

6.1 The ICT Code of Practice contributes to the system of internal controls
operated by the Council under its Code of Corporate Governance.



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.2

10.

Page 54

Legal Implications

The ICT Protocol would b a reference point for any investigations carried out
into complaints against Members which related to ICT.

Risk Management

The ICT Protocol contributes to the Council’s Risk Management Framework.
Background

Interim ICT Security Policies were produced prior to the Cheshire East
Council ICT Policies being set up. The Cheshire East ICT Security Policies
have been developed by Corporate Governance Sub-Group.

The Corporate Governance Sub-Group was set up to work through the
working detail of the ICT Security Policies for the Corporate Governance
Group. It was felt by the Sub Group that a Code of Practice for Staff and
Councillors would be beneficial to give detailed examples of good practice.
The Code of Practice has been presented to the ICT Members Panel on the
30th July 2010. Recommendations from the panel were then taken to the
Corporate Governance Group on the 9" September.

This report presents a Code of Practice for ICT for Councillors at Cheshire
East. The Code of Practice collates existing guidance on the use of ICT at
Cheshire East aligned with best practice in ICT Management

The Standards Committee is requested to review the proposed Code of
Practice and agree it as a protocol.

Access to Information

The background papers can be inspected by contacting the report writer.

For further information contact:

Keith Sutton

ICT Project Manager

Tel: 01270 686293

E-mail: keith.sutton@cheshireeast.gov.uk




Page 55

Cheshire E;s;a

Council?

ICT Code of Practice for Members

1 Introduction

This Member Code of Practice is based on the ICT Security Policies, the Government Code
of Connection requirements and 1ISO27001 standards for information management and
security. It has been developed to assist members meet their responsibilities and should be
used in conjunction with the associated HR and ICT Policies.

This Code of Practice is split into three areas; the first providing guidance on using Council
systems, the second detailed guidance on using Council equipment and the third specific
direction on using non-Council equipment to access systems.

Failure to adhere to this Code of Practice may be reported to the Council’'s Standards
Committee.

For further guidance on any of the points set out below please contact the ICT Service
Desk Contact x88888 or 0845 7603456.

2 Guidance when using Council Systems
2.1 Passwords

Passwords protect information against accidental or malicious disclosure, modification or
destruction. Members must ensure that passwords are kept confidential and used in line
with the ICT Security Policies. The main requirements being:

« A password should be at least seven characters in length.

« Contain characters from three of the four categories: uppercase; lowercase; 0
through 9; or special characters (*&"%$£"! etc.).

« Not contain two of the same characters consecutively.

. Be difficult for anyone else to guess.

. Be kept confidential and not shared with anyone, not written down, and not
included as part of an automated routine e.g. stored in a macro.

. Be changed regularly and not used again for at least 12 months

2.2 Email

e Each Councillor is responsible for the context of all text, audio and images that they
send, and should not contain derogatory statements, potentially libellous, defamatory,
comments likely to cause offence, gossip, hoaxes, or jokes to others inside or outside
the Council.

e Be aware that data contained within email could be subject to the provisions of the Data
Protection Act.

o Automatic forwarding arrangements for any messages from the work account to one
outside the authority, e.g. at home must not be set up. Automatically sending Cheshire
East emails to external accounts increases the risk of disclosure or interception.

¢ Confidential or sensitive information sent outside of the Council network via email must
be encrypted using approved methods only — Contact the ICT Service Desk for
additional information.

¢ Do not forward or reply to suspicious emails or chain letters, similarly do not click on
attachments or web links within suspect emails. If in doubt contact the ICT Service Desk
for advice.

e Be aware that a disclaimer is included automatically in all outgoing emails stating that is
was sent in confidence for the addressee only, may be legally privileged and any views
expressed are not necessarily those of Council.

1



Page 56

Cheshire E@
Council?
¢ Email correspondence may be monitored inline with the ICT Security

Policies.

2.3 Internet

e Councillors should only enter confidential personal information, e.g. credit card numbers,
log in passwords etc. to websites if access to the site is encrypted, i.e. a ‘padlock’
symbol is shown in the bottom corner of the screen.

e The Internet is an insecure medium, therefore confidential or sensitive documents should
only be sent by methods agreed to be secure. Council information which is intended for
internal use only, must not be placed on a system or website that is publicly accessible.

o Members indicating their affiliation with Council, e.g. via an email address or other
identifier, in bulletin boards, special interest groups, forums or other public offerings, in
the course of their business must clearly indicate that the opinions expressed are not
necessarily those of the Council.

e Care must be taken using Social Networking sites. The same care must be taken when
posting information as sending email or writing official letters (see Social Networking
Guidance on the Intranet).

2.4 Mobile Working

Mobile working, whether at home or away from normal business locations, brings with it
additional threats to data security. Mobile equipment is also more vulnerable to theft, loss or
unauthorised access.

e Care should be taken with devices that have in-built cameras to ensure appropriate
use. E.g. phone camera within a Children’s Centre environment.

e Equally it is important to ensure that unauthorised individuals are not able to view or
overhear confidential or sensitive information. All sensitive or critical business
information should be kept secure when not required.

¢ Additional confidentiality issues arise when using equipment abroad. See Using
Portable Electronic Devices Abroad.

3 Guidance when using Council equipment
3.1 Use and Protection

¢ Members may use their Council provided computers for official business activities and
those related to other public bodies or organisations on which they are the Council’s
representative or nominee, e.g. Housing Trust, Parish Council.

¢ Members should not use the ICT facilities improperly for political purposes such as the
promotion of a political party, a candidate or group of candidates in an election or in
connection with a party political campaign. Receiving email on a separate private email
account from a member’s group or party would not be regarded as improper.

e Personal use is allowed providing the ICT security policies are adhered to.

o Members must ‘log out’ of systems fully or lock the computer when leaving a workstation
unattended.

¢ All information and files created, received, stored or sent while on Council business or
using Council facilities form part of the Council’s corporate records and remain property
of the Council.

¢ All corporate laptops must be encrypted. This should be arranged via the ICT Service
Desk.
Only corporate encrypted memory sticks must be used.

¢ Always ensure that equipment and media are powered off when left unattended and
preferably locked away.



Page 57

Cheshire E;s;a

Council%
Good security measures should be used to protect a laptop i.e. not left
unattended when in use or when in sleep or standby saving states. The laptop must be
kept in a secure location (i.e. out of sight) when not in use and not be an easy target for
thieves.
Ensure that only equipment belonging to the Council is connected to a Council PC or the
network.

3.2 The Council’s Internet

The Council’s Internet and email service may not be used for transmitting, accessing,
retrieving or storing any communications of a discriminatory or harassing nature or
materials that are racist, offensive, obscene, pornographic, sexually explicit, or used for
the purposes of gambling.

The Council does not accept liability for any loss or damage arising from use of the
Internet to make personal financial transactions.

Software must not be downloaded from the internet without approval from the ICT
Service Desk.

Internet use is monitored in line with the ICT Security Policies.

3.3 Software and Virus Protection

The Council adheres strictly to software licence agreements.

Members should ensure that all software is purchased through ICT Strategy and that the
suppliers’ conditions of use are followed.

Software should not be copied and unlicensed software should not be used.

Care should be taken to prevent and detect the introduction of viruses and other
malicious software. For example:

e Do not use removable media of an unknown origin e.g.: USB keys, CDs etc:

¢ Do not share removable media with personally owned PCs to avoid spreading a
virus.

¢ Do not download gamel/joke software or screen savers as they are a common
method for spreading viruses.

Guidance when using own equipment

Non Council equipment or privately owned equipment should only access systems
through ICT approved remote access solutions.

Members must ‘log out’ of systems fully or lock the computer when leaving a workstation
unattended.

All information and files created, received, stored or sent while on Council business or
using Council facilities form part of the Council’s corporate records and remain property
of the Council.

Members should clearly state in any email whether it is being sent on official Council
business.

The content of every email sent on official Council business must not be such that it
brings the Council into disrepute. Emails whether including text, audio and/or images
must not contain derogatory statements, potentially libellous or defamatory comments or
anything likely to cause offence, to others either inside or outside the Council. Note that
gossip, hoaxes, or jokes fall within this category.

The Internet is an insecure medium, confidential or sensitive information should not be
sent by personal email.

Members are reminded that the Council’'s indemnity and insurance arrangements are
limited to official business.



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59 Agenda ltem 9

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Standards Committee

Date of Meeting: 27" September 2010.
Report of: Customer Relations Manager.
Subject/Title: Customer and Local Government Ombudsman Complaints

— Quarter 1 2010/11.

1.0 Report Summary

1.1  This report provides a summary of the corporate complaints and local
government ombudsman complaints dealt with by Cheshire East Council for
the period 1% April 2010 to 30" June 2010.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That having regard to the parameters of the Committee’s terms of reference
as outlined in this report, the Committee notes this report and makes any
further response it considers appropriate.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 Atits meeting held on 26" July 2010 the Committee considered a report which
provided a summary of complaints dealt with by the Local Government
Ombudsman in respect of Cheshire East Council for the period 1 April 2009 to
31 March 2010. The Committee agreed that a summary report on both Local
Government Ombudsman complaints and customer complaints be submitted
to each meeting of the Committee.

4.0 Wards Affected

41 Al

5.0 Local Ward Members

51 Al

6.0 Policy Implications including

6.1  Adherence to the Corporate Compliments, Suggestions and Complaints Policy.

7.0 Financial Implications

7.1 If maladministration causing injustice is found, Cheshire East Council can be
asked to pay compensation to a complainant. A compensation payment is

v.2



8.0
8.1

8.2

9.0
9.1

10.0
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

v.2

Page 60

also possible where a matter is settled prior to a formal finding by the
Ombudsman.
Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

The Committee’s terms of reference as set out in the Constitution include the
following:

Ensuring that the Council maintains appropriate links with the Commission for
Local Administration in England (Ombudsman)

Referring issues, which impinge on staff conduct, performance, terms of
employment, training and development to the appropriate and responsible
Executive Member and/or Manager

Promoting high standards of responsiveness by the Council to its clients and
contacts

The Committee’s role in considering this report is to determine what, if any,
action it should take to further the above aims.

Risk Management

In addition to other measures within the Council’s management structure, the
remit of this Committee contributes towards the management of risk in
handling complaints, and the promotion of good practice.

Background and Options

At its meeting held on 26™ July 2010 the Committee considered a report which
provided a summary of complaints dealt with by the Local Government
Ombudsman in respect of Cheshire East Council for the period 1 April 2009 to
31 March 2010.

During discussion of the report, the issue of customer complaints in general
was raised. An outline of the process was provided for Members, together with
an indication of current performance compared with the previous period.
Complaints, suggestions and compliments management information was
collated on a monthly basis.

Members considered that it would be helpful to receive a report at each
meeting on complaints/compliments generally, divided into the type of
complaint, response rates for responding to complaints and whether or not
they were satisfactorily resolved from the perspective of the complainant. The
information would enable the Committee to detect emerging trends and
highlight areas of concern.

The Committee agreed that a summary report on both Local Government
Ombudsman complaints and customer complaints be submitted to each
meeting of the Committee.



Page 61

The New Corporate Compliments, Suggestions and Complaints Policy

10.5

10.6

The new Corporate Compliments, Suggestions and Complaints policy and
procedure came into effect from 1% April 2010. The new policy is reduced to
two stages, with the first stage investigated by the service that caused the
dissatisfaction, and the second stage, or appeal, investigated by an Officer
independent to the service that is being complained about. The new policy
also provides improved definition of roles and responsibilities and improved
guidance in dealing with unreasonable and unreasonably persistent
complainants.

Compliments, suggestions and complaints continue to be managed using the
former Macclesfield database, which provides very basic case management
functionality and very limited management information. A new Complaints
database (part of the Corporate CRM system) will be implemented during Q3
that will provide more sophisticated case management functionality and
improved management information including customer satisfaction. This will
be able to produce a more extensive report using this system for the year end.

Performance Highlights

During the first quarter, 453 new complaints were received. By 13" July, 414
(91%) had been responded to and closed.

342 (83%) of the 414 closed complaints were responded to within the target of
ten working days.

9 Stage 2 Complaints were investigated. The average investigation time was
46 days, against a target of 20 working days. Some of the delay can be
explained by delays in initiating the stage 2 process and identifying the
independent reviewer.

32 complaints were carried over from 2009/10 (managed under the previous
policy). Only 31% were answered on time.

59 Compliments were received. The training sessions have encouraged
officers to officially recognise when customers complimented a service, as a
result the compliments have increased by 86%.

34 suggestions were received.

The Local Government Ombudsman asked us to investigate 20 complaints in
the first quarter. Of these, 7 were premature complaints. The LGO
discontinued 1 investigation due to lack of evidence. In 3 cases they found no
maladministration and we are awaiting their decision on the 9 remaining
cases.

Improvements Made Arising from Complaints and Suqggestions

10.7

10.8

v.2

Arising from public service improvement suggestions individual services have
are encouraged to make improvements

Environmental Health — The public suggested the service should take
payment for contaminated land enquiries over the phone rather than send in a
cheque. This was established on the PARIS payment system, so now
payment for contaminated land enquiries can be taken over the phone.



Page 62

10.9 Children’s Services — The public were unhappy with the School Organisation
and Admissions ‘appeals and admission’ process and how siblings were
treated. Revised admission arrangements for 2011have been brought in to
give higher priority to younger siblings.

Individual Service Performance

Completed | Average Number of | Average
Service stage 1 number of ongoing number of

complaints | days to complaints | days since

complete received

Planning & Performance 1 1 - -
Registrars 4 2 - -
Communications 4 3 - -
Environmental Services 162 5 2 23
Health & Wellbeing 79 6 2 17
Safer & Stronger 25 6 - -
Communities
Children & Families 3 7 2 49
Customer Services 40 7 1 35
Planning & Policy 47 9 13 15
Council Tax 42 9 8 27
Democratic Services 12 10 - -
Housing Benefits 20 11 - -
Regeneration - - 1 31
Finance - - 1 21

(Note: All performance data is provided as of 13/07/10 as it is not possible to run historical reports in

the existing Complaints database)

LGO Complaints

On-
Going

No
Maladministration
Found/Discontinued

Premature

Maladministration
Found

Planning &
Performance

Reqistrars

Communications

Environmental 2
Health

Health & Wellbeing

Safer & Stronger
Communities

Children & Families

Adult Social Care

WIN|IN

Planning & Housing

Council Tax &
Recovery

WIN

Democratic Services 1

Housing Benefits

Regeneration

Finance

v.2




Page 63

11.0 Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Helen Gough

Designation: Customer Relations Manager
Tel No: 01606 271519

Email: Helen.gough@cheshireeast.gov.uk

v.2



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



1 Bulletin 48 August 2010

Introduction

This Bulletin comes at a time of big change for us following the Government’s
announcement of its intention ‘to abolish the Standards Board regime’. Whilst we still
await the detail of this policy, we will share with you what we know about what is
proposed, and outline the timetable for our closure.

Although we have had to modify our work programme in light of this proposal, we
remain ‘open for business’ and set out in this Bulletin our schedule of activities for the
coming year. We are committed to continuing to work with you and support you in
operating the standards framework successfully.

This is a sad month for us as we say goodbye to many valued staff leaving the
organisation in our first wave of redundancies. We are losing people who have
contributed much to this organisation, and many of whom have worked for us for
some time. They will be much missed. We wish them all well in their future
endeavours and thank them sincerely for their hard work.

The Future of Standards for England and the Standards
Framework

The Government’s ‘Programme for Government’ of 20 May 2010 contained the
commitment to “abolish the Standards Board regime”. Primary legislation is needed
to abolish Standards for England, and we expect the provisions to be included in the
planned Decentralisation and Localism Bill which is due to be presented in late 2010,
with Royal Assent anticipated between July and October 2011. This is likely to lead
to final closure of this organisation sometime between 31 December 2011 and 31
March 2012. We have not seen any transitional provisions at this stage but will
provide an update in a later Bulletin, when we know more.

In the light of these circumstances we have reviewed our business plan for this year
and next. Our current priorities are to fulfil our statutory duties, to support local
authorities in maintaining high standards and to assist the government in developing
and implementing any new arrangements they may choose to put in place.

In the meantime, the local standards framework still exists and standards committees
and monitoring officers have an obligation to keep the system operating.

In order to assist you we will:
e Continue to provide advice and information to those who phone or write to us
with queries about the standards regime via our enquiries helpline, monitoring

officer helpline or press helpline. We will respond immediately where we can by
telephone or in writing by post or email.

e Update our guidance on the framework to make it easier to use.

10



2 Bulletin 48 August 2010

There will be changes to the content of the guidance where sections may be out
of date, inaccurate or incorrect. We have received several suggestions from
stakeholders and will incorporate these in the guidance where appropriate.

The format of the guidance is changing to make it easier to use and more
helpful. It will highlight all statutory requirements and provide a link to the
relevant legislation.

We are not proposing to produce any other new guidance products, unless a
specific need is identified. All revised guidance will only be available via our
website.

e Produce an updated case review.

As a result of a request from the Association of Council Secretaries and
Solicitors, and to assist the standards community as a whole, we are updating
the Case Review 2007 to reflect cases decided by the First Tier and Upper
Tribunals since the Case Review was last updated in 2008.

¢ Continue to carry out investigations referred to us by standards committees.

See the article towards the end of this bulletin on the factors we take into
account when deciding whether to accept cases for investigation

e Maintain existing relationships with key stakeholder organisations.

Standards for England will continue to provide support to those in the regulated
and standards community who have requested our help with ethical issues.

e Meet requests for staff to give presentations or attend training events.

We will continue to provide staff and material for presentations and training
events where we are requested to attend and where it fits in with our current
business plan.

e Maintain our web site as a resource to support standards committees.

We will carry out routine maintenance of our website and the guidance we
provide on it. We have published our Annual Report and Annual Accounts online
but we will not be printing these publications.

An update on monitoring returns

In June 2010 we sent out an email to all monitoring officers explaining that we had
decided to postpone the return for the April to June quarter. As part of the review of
the Business Plan we considered our requests for local authorities to complete
quarterly monitoring. There will be no further requests for the submission of quarterly
or annual returns. We do not anticipate re-establishing these procedures, unless a
specific monitoring need arises in which we have to play a part.

The online questionnaires have been removed from our website and are now
inaccessible. However, the information submitted by local authorities is available on
request. If any authority wishes to obtain a copy we can provide them with pdf
versions of any of the following:



3 Bulletin 48 August 2010

e The standards committee composition details, correct as of the last date of
monitoring (31 March 2010)

e Two years of case information, listed in chronological order by date received
e Annual Return 2008/09
e Annual Return 2009/10

Please email requests to authorityreturns@standardsforengland.gov.uk

Aggregated summary statistics of the quarterly return information are still available
online at
http://www.standardsforengland.gov.uk/CaseinformationReporting/L ocalstatistics/

We will shortly be publishing an online report of the annual return information
collected for 2009/10. This includes an introduction to the data, a key figures page, a
summary of the findings and a full list of all the most common responses to each
question.

Acceptance of Complaints by SfE

We have reviewed the factors we take into account when assessing if we will accept
cases in the public interest, referred to us by local standards committees, for
investigation. We reviewed the factors to see whether they were still appropriate
taking into account the Government’s stated policy, its localist approach to regulation
of local government and our reduced budget.

We concluded that both the underlying criterion of public interest and the relating
factors are consistent with our statutory purpose and continue to be valid while the
current standards framework remains in place. Therefore we have not made any
changes to the factors or criterion. However, when considering whether to accept
cases we will have to have regard to the resources we have available and take
account of the relative importance of cases.

Reappointment of Independent members

We have been asked if an authority has to follow our recommendation that
independent members serve no more than two terms of four years after which new
members should be recruited. Some authorities are concerned that, given the
current uncertainty regarding the future of the standards regime, it may be preferable
to retain those who have been trained and understand their role rather than to try to
recruit and appoint new members. In light of the uncertain future of the standards
framework we advise that, as long as the original appointment was carried out in
accordance with all the correct legal requirements at the time (e.g. approved by full
council, after being openly advertised and having assessed the suitability of all the
applicants) an authority can extend that term for a further period. This can only be
done during the term of office of an existing independent member and by approval
from full council. Once the independent member’s term has expired the full
recruitment procedures must be followed again.



4 Bulletin 48 August 2010

Tell us how it should be done

The Standards Forum now has more than 1,100 users and over 200 posts on almost
70 different topics. The subjects of vexatious complaints, informing the subject
member about a complaint and promoting ethical behaviour continue to be popular.
More recently posts about subject members resigning before an election and
discussions about the future of the standards regime have been generating interest.

If you have anything to say about these issues or if you want to share good practice,
seek advice from your peers or simply draw attention to something you think might
be relevant to others, do it on the Forum. To have your say, visit:
www.standardsforengland.gov.uk/resources/TheStandardsForum/

The Forum is open to members of standards committees, monitoring officers and
other relevant council officers. If you are not currently registered for the Forum and
would like to have access, please email: forum@standardsforengland.gov.uk




Page 69 Agenda ltem 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7c of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous meeting
	5 Sub-Committee Terms of Reference
	6 Planning Protocol
	20100831114658927

	7 Partnership Protocol
	Agreement (2)

	8 ICT Code of Practice for Cheshire East Members
	CEC ICT Code of Practice for Members v13

	9 Customer Complaints and Local Government Ombudsman Complaints
	10 Standards for England - Bulletin 48
	12 Complaints Received Under the Code of Conduct

